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2008 2007  Change
REWE (B%Tr)  RESULTS HIGHLIGHTS (HK$000)
Wi Revenue 2,316,136 2,155,014 7%
BRI AR A Profit before tax 338,974 337,124 1%
AREEREAA Profit attributable to equity holders
FE( &= F of the Company 317,829 312,276 2%
BEMRE Total assets 3,118,939 2,661,539 17%
e Shareholders’ funds 2,380,863 2,077,378 15%
BEITRA Issued share capital 62,623 62,416 0%
MEEEFE Net current assets 1,334,758 1,132,805 18%
SREE PER SHARE DATA
SREARRF (E) Basic earnings per share (HK cents) 50.8 50.2 1%
FRASKE (B ) Cash dividends per share (HK cents) 25.4 24.0 6%
SREEFE (ET ) Net assets per share (HK$) 3.8 33 15%
TERKLLE KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS
OB R R Return on average
[l (%) shareholders’ funds (%) 14.3 15.9 -10% 3
FHEEMMERIRE(%) Return on average total assets (%) 11.0 12.2 -10% E
.-
rE
JL foh 222 3y & fn
RER 7H _ FAREL BT R i3
Sha e PI’ICG |nfOI’matI0n All share prices are expressed in Hong Kong dollars F
2008 2007 2006
55 =43 54 543 3] &I&
Highest Lowest Highest Lowest Highest Lowest
—%2=H Jan - Mar 4.79 3.50 6.08 4.75 490 4.55
WEAYE Apr - Jun 3.85 3.20 6.80 5.01 4.83 3.33
+ENA Jul-Sep FEAN/A TEFAN/A 7.05 533 4.45 3.80
+Z+—=A Oct - Dec T FAN/A TERAN/A 6.05 4.35 5.62 4.22
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“China Top Brand”
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“RHECH” was awarded
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Dr. Chen Chiang was awarded
“Industrialist of the Year Award”
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Dr. Chen Chiang was
awarded the Grand
Bauhinia Medal 2005
of Hong Kong SAR
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Dr. Chen Chiang was
awarded the Lifetime
Achievement Award
of the DHL/SCMP
Hong Kong
Business Awards
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) No.1 Sales Turnover of its kind Limited was elected
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degree of Doctor‘of SFlence honoris O Enterprise Directory” for the Companies in Asia
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Chiang Chen Industrial Charity Foundation
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Dr. Chen Chiang donated his shares in
Chen Hsong Holdings Ltd. to establish
“Chiang Chen Industrial Charity
Foundation”
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Chen Hsong Holdings Ltd.
(Stock Code: 00057) was listed
on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

Chen Hsong Machinery Co., Ltd.
was awarded “ISO 9001 Quality
Assurance Certificate”
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Dr. Chen Chiang was honoured
with the OBE award
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Awarded the Governor’s
Award for Industry
(Productivity Category)
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Established Chen Hsong Machinery
Taiwan Co., Ltd. in Taiwan
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Completion of 170,000 sq.ft.
factory at Tai Po Industrial
Estate in Hong Kong
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2004

2002

: 1 JEE 465 R ASEAR 28 JE IR 5K
REHE TR EA e AT
Phase II of Chen Hsong ¢ freuar Flaten was
Industrial Park commenced awarded Ut}hty Model
production Patent Certificate B R TP Ik
Y[R TRE ) AR R CHEN-PET Z Bt iR v 3
WFBE LB AJE M RLE R A [ T2
Chen Hsong’s main manufacturing LT 7 Ml gt 5
and R&D centers, the 560,000sq.m. CHEN-PET, a two-stage
=y “Chen Hsong Industrial Park” was preform moulding turnkey
c set up in Shenzhen, PRC system, was awarded the
“CMA Machinery and
O Equipment Design Award
;ﬁﬁ%mﬁﬁggg’&;ﬁﬁ (Hong Kong Awards for
(@ 1SO 14001 1AL Industry)”
iChen System Bh e |
iChen System™ 28 20044F- 75 Chen Hsong Machi
> et 200 A g Machinery
TS+ itk Mt B S Taiwan Co., Ltd. was awarded
The iChen System™ was awarded . “ISO 14001 Environmental
2004 Hong Kong Award for Industry: JRT i HESE e Management System
Machinery and Equipment Design Established Chen Hsong Certificate”
Certificate of Merit Machinery Ningbo

D
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HRA [\ “King of Toys” in 1970’ S AR 2 0 o R
Established Chen De Plastics T TR SRR
Machinery Co., Ltd. in Shunde, PRC 10 ounce in-line screw-type plastic

injection moulding machine, the
first locally-designed and
manufactured, was launched and
granted the “New Product Award”
by The Chinese Manufacturers’
Association of Hong Kong

60’s

A OB

Launched the first two-colour
extrusion blow moulding machine

50’s
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%=1+ =& Dr. Chen CHIANG Chairman
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Dr. Chen CHIANG

was awarded the

Grand Bauhinia Medal
2005 of Hong Kong SAR
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Business Review

The Group registered its sixth consecutive year of turnover
growth in the financial year of 2008, with turnover and profit
attributable to equity holders rising 7% and 2% as compared
with last year to HK$2,316 million and HK$318 million
respectively.

During the past year, the plastic machinery industry was
faced with multiple challenges, particularly the continued
rise of world iron and steel prices which had a direct negative
impact on the Group’s gross margin; some grades of steel
used by the Group even with accumulated price increases of
over 50% during the past year. These cost increases could
not be easily transferred to customers because most of the
Group’s customers were facing their own problems at the
same time, such as rising costs for plastic materials and
energy caused by sky-rocketing world crude oil prices. An
especially pronounced example was the incident of worldwide
toy recalls affecting one of the Group’s most important
customer segments, and the deep impacts of this incident
persist till now. At the same time, economic recession in
the U.S. significantly weakened export demand from China,
causing much uncertainty in the market.

5 SEHESR AT A W] CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Looking Forward

This year, the Group launched its “TP” series of two-platen
very-large-tonnage injection moulding machines (from
2,200 to 4,500 tons) amid widely positive responses from
the market. This new product line was created by integrating
matured Japanese engineering platforms with innovative
design concepts from the Group, resulting in a series of
unique, patented technological breakthroughs that bestowed
upon the “TP” series significant cost advantages without
sacrificing superb performance; in the end, customers are
rewarded with remarkable cost effectiveness in a versatile
product.

The Group’s R&D focus, for the near future as in past years,
will continue to be in two-platen large-tonnage machines
and energy-saving technologies — areas that the Group fully
expects to retain its leadership in the Greater China region.
Owing to its superior specifications and cost advantages, the
new two-platen very-large-tonnage product line is extremely
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competitive in the marketplace and will, the Group believes,
grow much faster and allow penetration to more customers
and markets.

Gratitude

The Year 2008 is the 50th anniversary of the Chen Hsong
Group. | would like to give my sincere thanks and gratitude
to all our shareholders, customers and employees who have
stayed with us and supported us throughout all these years.
| promise to do my best to lead the Group’s management
team, so that we face any environment with a strong will,
never forgo any opportunity that comes our way — and simply
do our best for our shareholders.

Chen CHIANG
Chairman

Hong Kong, 15 July 2008

The Univarnily of Hong Knsg B 8 X %

o

-
™

o
re i

EEEEFEBREER
BRI+ B

Dr. Chen CHIANG was
conferred the degree of
Doctor of Science honoris
causa by The University
of Hong Kong
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Management's Discussion & Analysis
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Business Performance

The Group registered the sixth consecutive year of turnover
and profit growth in the financial year of 2008, with turnover
growing 7% to HK$2,316 million (2007: HK$2,155 million)
and profit attributable to equity holders growing 2% to
HK$318 million (2007: HK$312 million). Basic earnings per
share also increased by 1% to HK50.8 cents (2007: HK50.2
cents).

This financial year has been an exceptionally challenging
one for the plastic machinery industry. Although the Group
managed a stable turnover growth (14%) during the first
half of the financial year, a large number of unfavourable
factors that started emerging during the second half (i.e.
after September 2007) caused the market to slow down
substantially. Among these factors, the more significant
were:

e World crude oil prices sky-rocketed from US$60 per
barrel in early 2007 to US$110 per barrel in March
2008 — almost a doubling in slightly
more than one year — with most of ™
the increase occurring in the third H’J
and fourth quarters. For instance,
oil price rose in an unprecedented
swing from US$80 per barrel to
US$100 per barrel within the
two months of October and
November 2007 alone.

e Rapidly rising crude oil prices
drove plastic prices to new

heights previously unseen.

9 SEHESR AT A W] CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED
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For example, local China PP (polypropylene) prices rose
from RMB11,000 per ton in early 2007 to RMB17,000
per ton in early 2008 — an increase of nearly 60%
within the time frame of one year. Most producers of
plastic products (especially exporters bound by supply
contracts) are taking a significant hit in gross margins, or
are already in the red.

e At the same time, the U.S. economy slipped into a
recession, dragged down by an escalating sub-prime
mortgage crisis. The U.S. Federal Reserve slashed
interest rates seven consecutive times since September
2007 without restoring consumer confidence. As the
U.S. remains one of the largest export markets for China
goods, its economic recession has direct impacts on
orders for exporting companies operating in China.

Caught within the two prongs of rising plastic prices and
weak demand, exporters in China are generally pessimistic
regarding prospects for the near future, which in turn
significantly reduced equipment investment plans for these
companies, thereby limiting the Group’s sales growth.

The price of the Group’s more important raw materials
— iron and steel — sustained a rapid rise throughout the last
year. For example, standard 20 mm steel plates went from
RMB4,000 per ton in early 2007 to RMB6,000 per ton in
March 2008, an increase of more than 50%. Some grades
of steel used by the Group had even accumulated a growth
of 80% over this year. Unfortunately, these cost increases
cannot be easily absorbed through raising sales prices under
the current weak market conditions, and consequently the
Group’s gross margin suffered during the second half of the
financial year.

10
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Market Analysis

Breakdown of turnover, based on the location of customers,
for the year ended 31 March 2008 is as follows:

2008 2007
(GB¥EEr) (BEEET) =
B Customer Location (HK$ million)  (HK$ million) Change
HRE (2FE) China (including Hong Kong) 1,589 1,492 7%
=y Taiwan 257 239 8%
B ihi SR NETE Other overseas countries 470 424 11%
2,316 2,155 7%

AEENHEMSAHERNESE - &
ERMATEE LFFREFROW
= MARTATE - AEAKER

HERMISBIA L - REMEEZRSITA
HETEABTIR  ESNKRKE B
BEBE LR  BAKE2FNHE

BR E#10% e
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FHET —RIRIPEE ST ENE
e E R EREE— SRR D DR - &
WIREMIIREEORESS - -
AMEENLES LMNE - Al &4
SEHEERTBONSOT  E¥FE
hETS LA ESIA%NIER -

For the China market, this has been a difficult year. First of
all, an international toys recall incident decremented the toys
industry, which traditionally accounted for more than 15%
of the Group’s sales, with an estimated 10% impact on the
Group’s annual turnover.

The Chinese Government implemented a series of measures
to reduce Sino-U.S. trade deficit, which included further
reducing export VAT rebates and levying raw material
deposits for “reprocessors”. The impacts on exporting

companies had been devastating. Nevertheless, the Group
still managed, through perseverant efforts of the local sales
team, a healthy 14% sales growth in China during the first
half of the financial year.

]- ]- SEHESR AT A W] CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED



EEEZRERDH
Management's Discussion & Analysis

BATHFE  THREEEREMmMEK - &
ERMEBMKBBERZE)SIESTE
BURE - RZREXHHHERFTR
BREE FELETHETHRAKNELRR
HIREENMIEERE  MAEZHERS
FtRBEMSFIERSNBERT - EiE
REBIZBA S ARPAN - ARNELEALE
MEAKEN -—LZLEP  25EL
RANMAEEMIG  TERPEBRERE
BHREGR SRR  FELARHEL -

HMEAEMENFNERAZTL - PE
BT % RINE MRS RITERBE ARE
RIRE - ML THFNPETEHEE
B BERME - SREANEERDNLE
FRI%ZEBEILBMET(ZET+
F I B¥14.92(87T) »

BEALTMENERALEFRY 8%
ERR257TEIT( =TT LF : BH2.39
Br) - MAENSIRETFEXBER A
RAPIE R NETE - ERKRAEE G
BB NMEEREN  FHFESmT

New unfavourable factors continued to emerge during the
second half. To begin with, a new “Labour Contract Law” that
came into effect has attracted tremendous attention from all
aspects of society. Many large corporations currently adopt
a reserved view of the new law, fearing the significant labour
cost increases and management instabilities that may follow.
Coupled with rapidly rising plastic prices and weak order
demand from the U.S. and Europe markets, these factors
put a veil over future prospects and lowered visibility. As
large companies form much of the Group’s core customers
segment, the impacts of such sentiments still lingering over
the market, with these customers taking an extremely passive
attitude towards capacity expansion, have been stronger
than anticipated.

Other unfavourable factors such as the devastating snow
storm in central China during the fourth quarter, the Chinese
Government raising interest rates multiple times and
increasing bank cash reserves in a bid to tighten money
supply, all contributed to a substantially challenging and
low-growth year for the China market. Nevertheless, for the
full financial year, the Group’s China sales still grew 7% to
HK$1,589 million (2007: HK$1,492 million).

Turnover in the Taiwan domestic market grew 8% to HK$257
million (2007: HK$239 million), driven by an emerging
high-end electronics industry. In the future, the Group will
continue to develop more advanced products tailored for
these high-end markets in order to achieve even better
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cost effectiveness and consolidate the Group’s competitive
advantages in this new industry segment.

As to the international market, the Group registered a stable
growth of 11% to HK$470 million (2007: HK$424 million).
Market sentiments in the U.S. and Europe weakened
significantly during the second half, dragged down primarily
by the U.S. economic recession. However, the Group still
retains significant penetration in a number of key industry
segments (e.g. household electrical appliances). In addition,
following the Group’s expansion in large-tonnage machine
production capacity, export volume of such machines
increased rapidly during the past year, while at the same
time bringing other product lines to new potential markets.
As large-tonnage machines had been the primary growth
driver in many countries (especially the automotive section in
South America and Europe), and matched with the technical
superiority of the Group’s small-to-medium tonnage
machines, more customers will be reached and market
shares in rapidly developing countries (such as Poland,
India, Brazil, etc.) will be raised.

In the coming financial year, two of the Group’s major
promotional products will be the new “TP” series of two-
platen, very-large-tonnage machines, and models with
advanced energy-saving technologies. These products

are best positioned to fulfill the needs of high-growth and
demanding industries (such as automotive) in China and
internationally.

SU
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New Technologies and New Products
Development

The Group introduced its new two-platen, very-large-
tonnage series (from 2,200 to 4,500 tons) injection moulding
machines during this financial year amid broadly favourable
customer responses. This new product series was created by
a team of Japanese and Chinese experts and its “true two-
platen” design represents a quantum leap in specifications
and production flexibility over traditional “toggle” or
“2.5-platen” designs. In particular, innovative patented
technologies such as a unique tie-bar locking mechanism,
high-speed automatic mould-height adjustment feature and
superior hydraulic connections design, give the machine an
unprecedented mixture of high speed, high precision, high
stability and low noise operation. This new series of very-
large-tonnage machines is ideal for producing a wide range
of automotive parts and household appliances, and will
surely contribute to raising the Group’s market share in these
high-growth industries.

In addition to environmental significance, “energy-saving”
has recently become a crucial factor for customers trying
to protect eroding margins caused by constantly-rising oil
prices, high electricity prices and weak demand for plastic
goods. The Group has always been a fore-runner in energy-
saving technology, being the first manufacturer worldwide to
introduce energy-saving features into its full line of injection
moulding machines in the year 2000, closely followed by the
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world’s only series of energy-saving large-tonnage machines.
For the general plastics machinery market, “energy-saving” is
synonymous with “Chen Hsong”. The Group’s past and future
investments into developing generations of energy-saving
products is evident from the fact that most of the various
types of energy-saving technologies in the market today,
such as VDP systems, inverter servo systems, servomotor
systems, servopump systems, master-slave closed-loop
electronic VDP systems (for use in large-tonnage machines)
etc., originated from the Group’s R&D centres and were first

successfully demonstrated on the Group’s machines.

Today, energy-saving has become mainstream. Nevertheless,
different industries require different types of energy-saving
techniques due to their unique production requirements.
Therefore, it is imperative that a broad range of technologies
are available to satisfy the needs of diverse groups of
customers in order to achieve the highest cost effectiveness.
The Group will continue to leverage on its wide portfolio
of energy-saving technologies to maintain its historical
leadership and competitive advantage in the market.

The Group introduced its Ai/1000 series of ultra-high-speed
injection moulding machines in the K'2007 plastics show in
Germany. This new product successfully broke through the
500 mm per second injection speed ceiling achieved last year
to achieve the world-class level of 1,000 mm per second. It
is ideally suited for producing extremely thin-walled products

(such as mobile phones, batteries, notebook computers).
The Group also showcased the first 72-cavity PET preform
system in Asia — the CHEN-PET CPE-110 — with productivity
reaching world-class levels.
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During this financial year, the Group successfully introduced
its new “Ai” series of advanced intelligent computer
controllers, and has fully replaced older generation controllers
in all of the Group’s machines. Manufactured by the most
advanced SMT technology, the “Ai” series of advanced
controllers boast stronger capabilities, faster speed and
higher precision than all other controllers of similar grade
on the market. A series of unique intelligent diagnostic and
maintenance features, plus support for the new iChen™
Wireless system, contributed to the “Ai” controller's wide
popularity.

Production Efficiency and Cost Control

The Group prides itself in high production efficiency.
During the first significant increase of steel prices in 2004,
the Group managed to alleviate much of the cost impacts
through optimizations of its production processes and raising
efficiency. This time around, it was different — the steel price
increase was simply too significant to be fully absorbed. The
Group will continue to combat this cost increase by further
optimizing its product designs, ever improving production
efficiency, and seeking more savings from procurement
and logistics, but gross margin pressure is nevertheless
unavoidable.

16



EHEE k&5
Management's Discussion & Analysis

B 75 Bl B8
mENE & IR
R_ZEENF=ZA=+—H  KEEH
RBEEFEABKISHBEL(ZEE
+F: B3R L) WEFEMN
18% - MBI EEFEE T RERITHER
B EEBIL(Z T T F : BEE395(E
T0) v L EE R A B RS 3008 7T 0 A K
RITEEBE2808 (=TT LF
PE#3,3008 7T) + R BEES008 T o iR
TEEARHZEER  TEZAKSEHE
EMBRARINEEESD o

AEERRERS - EBROYBE R
B RoERNORNE  BETROR
DEE - UEHEEYEERE REE
CELE R

B MINE R EE

AEEEESERIE  —MRIVER
BHNEPEERE  BHE—RUB
T ETLRARE G EHERE
MR RTT - tEASBERREES -

Financial Review

Liquidity and Financial Conditions

As at 31 March 2008, the Group had net current assets
of HK$1,335 million (2007: HK$1,133 million), which
represented an 18% increase over last year. Included in
the net current assets were the bank balances of HK$362
million (2007: HK$395 million), a decrease of HK$33
million over last year, and the bank borrowings of HK$28
million (2007: HK$33 million), a decrease of HK$5 million.
The bank borrowings were of short-term bank loans with
floating interest rates, mainly used as working capital for the
subsidiaries of the Group.

It is the policy of the Group to adopt a consistent financial
management strategy, sufficient liquidity is maintained
with appropriate levels of borrowings to meet the funding
requirements of the Group’s investments and operations.

Treasury and Foreign Exchange Risk
Management

The Group adopts a conservative and centralized approach
in managing its funding. Funds, primarily denominated in
Hong Kong dollars, U.S. dollars and Renminbi, are normally
placed with banks in short to medium term deposits for the
working capital of the Group.
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For foreign exchange risk management, the Group manages
to reduce the risk exposure on its assets denominated in
foreign currencies by making appropriate levels of borrowings
in the corresponding currencies. As at 31 March 2008, the
Group had total foreign currency borrowings equivalent to
HK$28 million (2007: HK$33 million). The Group, from time
to time, assesses the risk exposure on certain volatile foreign
currencies and has it covered by forward exchange contracts
to minimize the risk.

Human Resources Development

As at 31 March 2008, the Group, excluding its associates,
had approximately 3,700 (2007: 3,500) full-time employees.
The Group offers good remuneration and welfare packages to
its employees and maintains market-competitive pay levels.
Employee promotions and pay are rewarded on individual as
well as the results performance of the Group. Share options
of the Company are granted to selected employees of the
Group for rewarding and retaining talents.

The Group conducted regular programmes, including
comprehensive educational and professional training, and
social activities counselling, to its employees to enhance staff
quality, standards of professional knowledge and teamwork
spirit.

Future Prospects

The market continues to be plagued by unfavourable factors —
the continued rise of iron and steel prices in particular.
Forecastability and visibility are low at this point of time.

This year is the Group’s 50th anniversary, the Group’s
management team shall continue to do their utmost in
developing new markets and new products, in order to reward
loyal customers for their support and our shareholders for
many years of trust.
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Executive Directors

Chen CHIANG GBM, OBE, DEng, DSc, DSSc, DBA, FHKIE,

aged 84

Chairman

Dr. Chiang was appointed a Director of the Company in 1991. He is
the Chairman of the Group and a director of various subsidiaries of the
Company. He is also a Director of Chen Hsong Investments Limited, a
substantial shareholder of the Company. Dr. Chiang founded the Group
and The Chiang Chen Industrial Charity Foundation. He was appointed
Hong Kong Affairs Advisor and a member of the Advisory Committee
of College of Management, National Chung Cheng University. Dr.
Chiang is also the Economy Advisor of Shandong Provincial People’s
Government and the Honorary President of The Research Centre for
Market — Economy of Peking University. In addition, Dr. Chiang is the
Honorary Chairman of the Federation of Hong Kong Machinery and Metal
Industries and the Hong Kong Electrical Appliances Manufacturers
Association. Dr. Chiang founded Chiang Chen Industrial Institute
situated at his hometown of Heze City of Shandong Province in 1999.
He is the father of Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG and Mr. Chi Kin CHIANG.

Lai Yuen CHIANG BA, aged 42

Chief Executive Officer

Ms. Chiang joined the Group in 1988 and was appointed a Director of the
Company in 2000. She is also the Chief Executive Officer of the Company
and is responsible for the management and business development of
the Group. Ms. Chiang holds directorships in various subsidiaries of
the Company and is a Director of Chen Hsong Investments Limited, a
substantial shareholder of the Company. She holds a bachelor degree
of Arts from Wellesley College, U.S.A. and has extensive experience
in production management, sales and marketing. Ms. Chiang is a
standing committee member of the Shenzhen Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference, Vice-Chairman of the Shenzhen Federation of
Industrial Economics and Vice-President of China Shenzhen Machinery
Association. She is also the Vice-President of The Toys Manufacturers’
Association of Hong Kong, a General Committee Member of the Chinese
Manufacturers’ Association of Hong Kong, a member of the Standing
Committee on Disciplined Services Salaries and Conditions of Service
of The Government of the Hong Kong SAR, a member of the Standing
Committee on Directorate Salaries and Conditions of Service of The
Government of the Hong Kong SAR, a director of Nano and Advanced
Materials Institute Limited, a member of the Council of both The Hong
Kong University of Science and Technology and The Open University of
Hong Kong. Ms. Chiang was awarded the “Young Industrialist Awards
of Hong Kong” by the Federation of Hong Kong Industries in 2004. She
is Dr. Chen CHIANG's daughter.
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Chi Kin CHIANG BSc, aged 41

Mr. Chiang joined the Group in 1998 and was appointed a Director of the
Company in 2003. He is also responsible for the general management
of Foshan Shunde Chen De Plastics Machinery Company Limited.
Mr. Chiang holds a bachelor degree of Applied Science in Industrial
Design from Rochester Institute of Technology, New York. Prior to
joining the Group, Mr. Chiang had six years’ experience in industrial
design, working for a multinational company in the U.S.A.. Mr. Chiang
is a member of the Guangdong Committee of Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference, Vice President of China Plastics Machinery
Industry Association and Guangdong Chamber of Foreign Investors
and a director of Hong Kong United Youth Association. He is Dr. Chen
CHIANG’s son.

Stephen Hau Leung CHUNG WVBA, BSc, aged 41

Mr. Chung joined the Group in 2001 and was appointed a Director
of the Company in 2003. He also holds the position of Group Chief
Officer — Strategy, Sales and Marketing. Mr. Chung holds a bachelor
degree of Science in Electrical Engineering & Computer Science from
the University of California, Berkeley. He also holds an MBA degree
in Finance from Columbia University, New York City, U.S.A.. Prior to
joining the Group, Mr. Chung had more than 14 years’ experience in
sales and marketing, management consultancy, financial analysis and
information technology.

Sam Hon Wah NG BSc Econ, MBA, MAF, DBA, ACA, FCPA, MHKIoD,
aged 48

Mr. Ng joined the Group in 2002 and was appointed a Director in 2003.
Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Ng was engaged in financial management
with several multinational companies. He has extensive cross-border
financial management, mergers and acquisitions, and corporate
development experience. Mr. Ng is responsible for managing special
projects and corporate governance of the Group. He holds an honour
degree in Economics at the London School of Economics (University of
London), a master degree of Applied Finance atthe Macquarie University
(Australia), an MBA degree from The City University Business School
(England) and a Doctor of Business Administration degree from the
University of Newcastle (Australia). Mr. Ngis a Chartered Accountant, an
associate member of The Institute of Chartered Accountants in England
& Wales, a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Directors.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Johnson Chin Kwang TAN BA, BSSc, aged 47

Mr. Tan was appointed a Director of the Company in 2001. He is
currently Managing Director of Macquarie Capital (Singapore) Pte.
Limited. Mr. Tan has over 20 years experience in investment banking
based out of New York and Hong Kong with world’s leading financial
institutions including JP Morgan and UBS Warburg. He has advised
major corporations and government authorities across the region,
including the privatization of Malaysia Airports Holdings Berhad and
the floatation of China National Aviation Corporation. Mr. Tan graduated
from the National University of Singapore and was a recipient of the Lim
Tay Boh gold medal and NUS Economics Society Book Prize.

Anish LALVANI BSc, MBA, FHKIoD,

aged 42

Mr. Lalvani was appointed a Director of the Company in 2002. He is
Group Managing Director of Euro Suisse International Limited which
has business interests in Hong Kong, Europe, the Former Soviet Union,
Africa and the Middle East. He has lived and worked in the U.K., U.S.A.,
India and Hong Kong and holds an MBA degree from the University
of San Diego. Mr. Lalvani has extensive marketing experience in the
emerging markets and an in-depth knowledge of electrical appliances
manufacturers in China — many of whom have in house moulding
facilities. He is the former Chairman for both the North Asia Region
and the Hong Kong Chapter of the Young Presidents’ Organization.
Mr. Lalvani is a member of Hong Kong Trade Development Council’s
Electronics/Electrical Appliances Industry Advisory Committee, a
committee member of the Asian Cultural Council and a Fellow of Hong
Kong Institute of Directors.
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Hon. Bernard Charnwut CHAN GBS, JP, aged 43

Mr. Chan was appointed a Director of the Company in 2004. He is a
graduate and is currently a Trustee of Pomona College in California,
U.S.A.. He is a Deputy to the Chinese National People’s Congress and
a member of both the Executive Council and the Legislative Council
of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region. He serves as the
Deputy Chairman of Lingnan University. Mr. Chan is also a member of
the Insurance Advisory Committee, the Antiquities Advisory Board and
the Greater Pearl River Delta Business Council. In addition, Mr. Chan
serves as an advisor of Bangkok Bank Public Company Limited, Hong
Kong Branch, the Chairman of the Advisory Committee on Revitalization
of Historic Buildings and the Hong Kong-Thailand Business Council
and the Chairperson of The Hong Kong Council of Social Service. Mr.
Chan is currently an Executive Director and the President of both Asia
Financial Holdings Ltd. and Asia Insurance Company, Limited. He is a
Non-executive Director of City e-Solutions Limited and New Heritage
Holdings Ltd., an Independent Non-executive Director of each of China
Resources Enterprise, Limited, Kingboard Laminates Holdings Limited,
Wing Lung Bank Limited and Yau Lee Holdings Limited, all of which are
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

Michael Tze Hau LEE BA, MBA, aged 47

Mr. Lee was appointed a Director of the Company on 1 May 2008.
He is Managing Director of MAP Capital Limited, an investment
management company. Prior to co-founding MAP Capital Limited, he
was a Managing Director of Hysan Development Company Limited.
Mr. Lee started his career in the investment industry in 1987 and has
since held senior management positions in multinational investment
companies including Indosuez Asia Investment Services Limited
and Lloyd George Management. He also co-founded Asia Strategic
Investment Management Limited in 1995. He was educated in the
United States of America and holds a Bachelor of Arts Degree from
Bowdoin College and a Master of Business Administration Degree from
Boston University. Mr. Lee was a member of each of the Main Board
and Growth Enterprise Market Listing Committee of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited. He is a member of the Securities and Futures
Commission (HKEC Listing) Committee, a non-executive director of Tai
Ping Carpets International Limited and Equestrian Events (Hong Kong)
of the Games of the XXIX Olympiad Company Limited and a Steward of
Hong Kong Jockey Club.
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Corporate Governance Practices

The board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company recognizes the
importance of good corporate governance practices in safeguarding the
interests of the shareholders and enhancing the performance of the
Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”). The Board is committed
to maintaining and ensuring a high standard of corporate governance
practices.

The Company has complied with the code provisions of the Code
on Corporate Governance Practices (the “CG Code”) as set out in
Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (the
“Listing Rules”) during the financial year ended 31 March 2008, except
for Code Provision A.4.2, as the chairman and managing director of
the Company shall not be required to retire by rotation according to the
provision contained in the Chen Hsong Holdings Limited Company Act,
1991 of Bermuda.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct regarding Securities
Transactions by Directors (the “Code”) on terms no less exacting
than the required standard as set out in the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) contained
in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. The Company, after having made
specific enquiries of all directors, confirms that all directors have
complied with the required standard as set out in the Code and the
Model Code throughout the financial year ended 31 March 2008.
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Board of Directors

At the date of this report, the Board consists of five executive directors
and four independent non-executive directors:

Executive Directors:

Dr. Chen CHIANG, GBM (Chairman)

Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Chi Kin CHIANG

Mr. Stephen Hau Leung CHUNG

Mr. Sam Hon Wah NG

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Johnson Chin Kwang TAN

Mr. Anish LALVANI

Mr. Bernard Charnwut CHAN

Mr. Michael Tze Hau LEE
(appointed on 1 May 2008)

Note:
Dr. Chen CHIANG (Chairman) is the father of Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG (Chief
Executive Officer) and Mr. Chi Kin CHIANG (Executive Director).

The primary responsibilities of the Board are to establish the Group’s
vision, strategic direction, general policies and strategic business
plans; to monitor and control the operating and financial performance
of the Group; to implement the best corporate governance practices
throughout the Group; and to set appropriate policies to assess and
manage risks in pursuit of the strategic objectives of the Group.
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The Board meets regularly throughout the year to review the overall
strategies and the operating and financial performance of the Group.
The Company Secretary assists the Chairman in setting the agenda for
Board meetings in consultation with all directors. Notice of at least 14
days is given to all directors for all regular Board meetings, and directors
can include matters for discussion in the agenda. The agenda and
accompanying Board papers for regular Board meetings are sent out
in full package to all directors at least 3 days before the date of a Board
meeting. Draft minutes of all regular Board meetings are circulated to all
directors for comments prior to their confirmation. Confirmed minutes of
Board meetings are kept by the Company Secretary. All directors have
access to Board papers and related materials and may, in appropriate
circumstances, seek independent professional advice at the Company’s
expense.

The Board has delegated the daily operations of the Company to
Management comprising all executive directors, management staff, and
operating heads of different business units. The main responsibilities
of Management are to implement the strategies and business plans
set by the Board and to manage the Group’s business operations in
accordance with the policies and directives of the Board.

The Company has in force appropriate insurance coverage on
directors’ and officers’ liabilities arising from the Group’s business. The
Management reviews the extent of insurance coverage on an annual
basis.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Each independent non-executive director of the Company has entered
into a letter of appointment with the Company for a term of three years
and in accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company is subject to
retirement by rotation and eligible for re-election.

The Company has received from each independent non-executive
director an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board considered all such directors are
independent.

Meetings and Attendance

During this financial year, four regular Board meetings were held at
approximately quarterly intervals, and the attendance record of each
director is as follows:

HERE, SRR

Number of meeting HER
EEHE Name of director attended/held  Attendance rate
BE Chen CHIANG 4/4 100%
B Lai Yuen CHIANG 4/4 100%
BER Chi Kin CHIANG 4/4 100%
SEIUR. Stephen Hau Leung CHUNG 4/4 100%
REE Sam Hon Wah NG 4/4 100%
PR BB Johnson Chin Kwang TAN 3/4 75%
Anish LALVANI Anish LALVANI 4/4 100%
PR B Bernard Charnwut CHAN 4/4 100%
FFE Michael Tze Hau LEE TEA N/A TEA N/A

(R=ZZZT\FAA—BEEE)

(appointed on 1 May 2008)
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The Chairman of the Board is Dr. Chen CHIANG, and the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company is Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG. The roles of the
Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer are defined clearly to ensure
their independence, accountability and responsibility with respect to
the management of the Company.

The Chairman focuses on overall corporate development and high-level
strategic directions of the Group, provides leadership to the Board, and
oversees the efficient functioning of the Board.

The Chief Executive Officer is responsible for managing the Group’s
business operations, and advising the Board of business strategies and
their implementations.

Remuneration of Directors

The Remuneration Committee was established on 9 May 2005. At
the date of this report, the Remuneration Committee comprises three
independent non-executive directors, namely Mr. Bernard Charnwut
CHAN, Mr. Anish LALVANI and Mr. Michael Tze Hau LEE (appointed on
1 May 2008), and the Chief Executive Officer, Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG.
During this financial year, Mr. Anish LALVANI retired as Committee
Chairman (remaining as member) and Mr. Bernard Charnwut CHAN
was appointed as the Committee Chairman, both with effect from
1 January 2008. The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee
are posted on the Company’s website.
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The main responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee are to
make recommendations to the Board on the policy and structure for
the remuneration of directors and senior management. It also reviews
and determines the remuneration packages of executive directors
and senior management of the Group. The Remuneration Committee
considers factors such as salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities of the executive directors and senior
management.

The Remuneration Committee held one meeting during this financial
year. The attendance record of each member is as follows:

HERE, EERE
Number of meeting HER
#®E Name attended/held  Attendance rate
PR B Bernard Charnwut CHAN 11 100%
Anish LALVANI Anish LALVANI 1/1 100%
B Lai Yuen CHIANG 1/1 100%
MFE Michael Tze Hau LEE TER N/A @A N/A

(R—ZZT/\FHA—HEZE)

(appointed on 1 May 2008)
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For the year ended 31 March 2008, the Remuneration Committee had
reviewed and approved matters relating to the remuneration packages
of the executive director and certain management staff after assessing
the individual performance and in consultation with the proposals of
the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officers. No member took part in
voting about his/her own remuneration at the meeting.
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Nomination of Directors

The Company does not have a Nomination Committee. The directors
participate in the assessment and selection of individuals nominated
for directorships. Individuals, suitably qualified and who can contribute
to the performance of the Company are identified and nominated to
the Board. The selection criteria for Board membership includes
professional expertise, high standards of relevant skills, high levels of
integrity and business ethics, and demonstrable competence as required
by a director of a listed company. A candidate to be appointed as an
independent non-executive director must also satisfy the independence
criteria set out in rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. During this financial year,
no additional director was appointed. Subsequent to the financial year
ended 31 March 2008, the Company had passed a written resolution
of the Board in relation to the appointment of Mr. Michael Tze Hau LEE
as an independent non-executive director of the Company with effect
from 1 May 2008.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established on 28 November 1998. At the
date of this report, the Audit Committee comprises four independent
non-executive directors, namely Mr. Anish LALVANI, Mr. Johnson
Chin Kwang TAN, Mr. Bernard Charnwut CHAN and Mr. Michael Tze
Hau LEE (appointed on 1 May 2008). During this financial year, Mr.
Johnson Chin Kwang TAN retired as Committee Chairman (remaining
as member) and Mr. Anish LALVANI was appointed as the Committee
Chairman, both with effect from 1 January 2008.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee follow the guidelines
set out by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and
have been updated to comply with the CG Code and are posted on the
Company’s website.
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reviewed the Group’s annual and interim financial statements with
respect to their true and fairness, and discussed with the external
auditors;

reviewed the changes in accounting standards and their impacts
on the Group’s financial statements;

reviewed the external auditors’ Letter to Management and responses
of the Management;

made recommendation on the re-appointment of external auditors
and reviewed their audit fees;

reviewed the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control systems;

reviewed the internal audit findings and recommendations of the
Internal Audit Department and the responses of Management;

reviewed the continuing connected transactions entered into by the
Group; and

reviewed the Group’s compliance with regulatory and statutory
requirements.
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Auditors’ Remuneration

Auditors’ remuneration for the year amounted to a total of HK$1,917,000
for the year, of which HK$1,731,000 was incurred for audit service and
HK$186,000 for non-audit services.

Accountability and Audit

The consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year
ended 31 March 2008 have been audited by the external auditors,
Ernst & Young, and reviewed by the Audit Committee. The directors
acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial statements
of the Group which were prepared in accordance with statutory
requirements and applicable accounting standards.

A statement by the external auditors about their reporting responsibilities
is set out in the Independent Auditors’ Report on pages 48 to 49 of this
annual report.

Internal Controls

The Company has in place an internal control system comprising a well-
designed organizational structure that facilitates segregation of duties,
comprehensive operational and financial controls, and effective risk
management. Management, which comprises senior staff and operating
heads of different business units, is primarily responsible for the design,
implementation, and improvement of internal controls. The Board
oversees internal governance and Management's activities. Through the
Audit Committee and the Group’s Internal Audit Department, the Board
has conducted an annual review on the effectiveness of the internal
control system for the year ended 31 March 2008.
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The Audit Committee has been established by the Board to conduct
regular checking on internal governance and compliance, and
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control system. The Audit
Committee comprises independent non-executive directors who are
experienced in corporate management. The Audit Committee appoints
and delegates to the Group’s Internal Audit Department the major role
in monitoring the Group’s compliance with policies and standards
and reviewing the effectiveness of internal controls through frequent
auditing of the business of different units across the Group. The Group’s
Internal Audit Department plans its internal audit activities annually and
submits to the Audit Committee for review and approval. Audit findings
are reported to the Audit Committee and any proposed corrective
actions are properly followed up. The Audit Committee also meets
with the Company’s external auditors regularly. Matters raised in the
Letter to Management from external auditors are reviewed by the Audit
Committee.

Communication with Shareholders

The Board recognizes the importance of good communications with all
shareholders and is committed to a policy of open and timely disclosure
of relevant information through published interim and annual reports,
public announcements and other public circulars. The Company usually
conducts press conference and analyst briefing immediately following
the announcement of interim and final results. Face-to-face meetings
and conference calls with institutional investors and investment analysts
are conducted on a regular basis to make sure that shareholders and
potential investors can obtain a good understanding of the Company’s
business. To ensure all investors and potential investors receive equal
access to information at the same time, information considered to be of
a price sensitive nature is released by formal public announcements as
required by the Listing Rules.

The annual general meeting provides a useful forum for shareholders to
exchange views with the Board. Shareholders are encouraged to attend
the annual general meeting for which at least 21 days prior notice is
given. The Chairman of the Board, the Chief Executive Officer, Chairmen
of the Audit and Remuneration Committees (or in their absence, other
members of the Committee) and external auditors are available to
answer shareholders’ questions at the meeting.
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The directors present their report and the audited financial statements
of the Company and the Group for the year ended 31 March 2008.

Principal Activities

The principal activities of the Company are investment holding and the
provision of management services.

The principal activities of the subsidiaries comprise the manufacture
and sale of plastic injection moulding machines and related products.
There were no significant changes in the nature of the Group’s principal
activities during the year.

Results and Dividends

The Group’s profit for the year ended 31 March 2008 and the state of
affairs of the Company and of the Group at that date are set out in the
financial statements on pages 50 to 139.

An interim dividend of HK8.0 cents per ordinary share was paid on
9 January 2008. The directors recommend the payment of a final
dividend of HK17.4 cents per ordinary share on or about 18 September
2008 to shareholders whose names appear on the register of members
on 25 August 2008 which, together with the interim dividend paid,
makes a total dividend of HK25.4 cents per ordinary share for the
year.

Five-Year Financial Summary

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and minority
interests of the Group for the last five financial years is set out on
page 144. This summary does not form part of the audited financial
statements.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Company and of the Group during the year are set out in note 15 to the
financial statements.
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Issued Share Capital

Details of the movements in the issued share capital of the Company
during the year are set out in note 30 to the financial statements.

Share Options

A summary of the share option scheme and details of the movements in
share options of the Company during the year, together with the reasons
therefor, are set out in note 31 to the financial statements.

Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Listed Securities of the
Company

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the listed securities of the Company during the year.

Reserves

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company during the
year are set out in note 32 to the financial statements. The details of
movements in the reserves of the Group during the year are included
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 53 to 54
of this annual report.

Distributable Reserves

At 31 March 2008, the Company’s reserves available for distribution,
calculated in accordance with the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as
amended), amounted to HK$236,503,000, of which HK$108,964,000
has been proposed as a final dividend for the year.

Charitable Contributions

During the year, the Group made charitable contributions totalling
HK$779,000 (2007: HK$931,000).
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Major Customers and Suppliers

Sales to the five largest customers of the Group accounted for less than
30% of the Group’s total revenue for the year.

Purchases from the five largest suppliers of the Group accounted for
less than 30% of the Group’s total purchases for the year.

Directors

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Directors

Chen CHIANG, GBM (Chairman)

Lai Yuen CHIANG (Chief Executive Officer) *
Chi Kin CHIANG

Stephen Hau Leung CHUNG

Sam Hon Wah NG

Independent Non-executive Directors

Johnson Chin Kwang TAN *

Anish LALVANI +*

Bernard Charnwut CHAN +*

Michael Tze Hau LEE **
(Appointed on 1 May 2008)

+  Members of the Audit Committee
* Members of the Remuneration Committee

In accordance with Bye-law 100 of the Company’s Bye-laws,
Mr. Michael Tze Hau LEE will retire from office and, being eligible, offers
himself for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

Inaccordance with Bye-law 189 (viii) of the Company’s Bye-laws, Messrs.
Chi Kin CHIANG, Sam Hon Wah NG and Bernard Charnwut CHAN will
retire from office by rotation and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

The biographical details of the directors of the Company are set out on

pages 19 to 22 of this annual report. The senior management of the
Group is also executive directors of the Company.

3 5 SEHESE AT PR W] CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED



EXRBREE
Report of the Directors

EERBSN

BN ERITZBRAFRE LBEE
TZESF  BMERARBFTLARBA
AR —FAERARETCEERER
ST AR IEZ BRIEE AT ©

ESNENzER

ARRTF) - BREFEERAR - HEBAFSK
R E KB A RN FRILERT LS RA
SEEEXUMESHREARRDZLZA
#J e

EERKRN - HEARORESFZ
BERAR

RZEBZENF=A=+—H KRBz
BEITE BB E £626,227,6000% ; A
NABEZRERITRABRARRRA
AFEE A B (T & R ESF KBAEGA(TE
H R ERE 65 1) EXVER) 2 D - HERERR
NREFTFEFEREESRPEKRDSE
3G EBE R ARAMREZELMA
ZHERRKE  IRBEBEBBERIM
BRAGTERATDESH EMmARNT
MRA D2 EHBITAERTEITESFR
S 2 RESFRI([BESFR D MASITA
AN A R s AR E Y4
To

A4 ANNUAL REPORT 2008

Directors’ Service Contracts

None of the directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company which is not
determinable by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts

No director had a material interest in any contract of significance to
the business of the Group to which the Company, or any of its holding
companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party during the
year.

Directors’ Interests and Short Positions in Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures

At 31 March 2008, the number of issued ordinary shares of the
Company was 626,227,600; and the interests and short positions of the
directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any associated corporation
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(the “SFO")), as recorded in the register of the Company required to
be kept under Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the
Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) in the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”)
were set out below.
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(a) Long position in shares and underlying shares of the Company

REBER REBRRHG

HE BT
BEERz
BRBEDLL

2R 2R Approximate

EEME Interest in  Interest in percentage

EEpE Nature of ordinary  underlying o Mtzx  of the issued

Name of director Interest shares shares* Total Notes ordinary shares

BE ELA 2,000,000 1,000,000 3,000,000 (1) 0.48%
Chen CHIANG Personal

Hith 397,413,620 600,000 398,013,620 (3) 63.56%
Other

BER EA 4,332,000 668,000 5,000,000 (1) 0.80%
Lai Yuen CHIANG Personal

AR EA 1,744,000 334,000 2,078,000 (1) 0.33%
Chi Kin CHIANG Personal

BRER A - 666,000 666,000 (1) 0.11%
Stephen Hau Leung CHUNG Personal

REE (EPN - 334,000 334,000 (1) 0.05%
Sam Hon Wah NG Personal

R fEA 484,000 - 484,000 (1) 0.08%
Johnson Chin Kwang TAN Personal

Anish LALVANI EA 220,000 - 220,000 (1) 0.04%
Personal

o BAITAET A2 ARG 2 s RIR
BARRRZ B BIFTR 2 BB
Rt M SEEAMARBITZK
0 o ARG BERR P EREM T

3l

*  The interests in underlying shares of equity derivatives represent

interests in options granted under the Company’s share option

schemes of which they were unissued shares. The details of such

interests are set out in note 31 to the financial statements.
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(b) RAEBSEERD 2HFR

(b) Long position in shares of associated corporations

REHEREBR AR BH# % (i) Interests in ordinary shares in Chen Hsong Investments Limited
Bz EBR fkﬁﬁ : (“CH Investments”):
LHERKRE
eRTRG
2B
Approximate
N Evi percentage
EEME 2R of the issued
ExpR Nature of 5% Interest  Fff&E shares of
Name of director Interest Capacity in shares Notes CH Investments
BE Hity 2REFEZNILA 66,044,000 (2) 84.42%
Chen CHIANG Other Founder of
discretionary trusts
BRI fEA EnEAA 1,216,000 (1) 1.55%
Lai Yuen CHIANG Personal Beneficial owner
Hith EREEFRZ 7,823,700 4) 10.00%
Other BERERA
Eligible beneficiary of
a discretionary trust
BEER fEA EnEBA 1,220,000 (1) 1.56%
Chi Kin CHIANG Personal Beneficial owner
EHAfth FREEFTZ 7,823,700 (5) 10.00%
Other BERERA

A4 ANNUAL REPORT 2008

Eligible beneficiary of
a discretionary trust
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(i) ARAICESEEB ISR AR (i) Dr. Chen CHIANG, a director of the Company, is deemed to

B TR 2 B R E A
Az

be interested in shares and paid-up capital of the following
associated corporations:

HAEEEB A RAER
ERITRG BN
EXZHNBEIL

Approximate
percentage of the

i relevant class of

BWERZEH issued shares/

B EE S B Interest in shares/ (i paid-up capital of
Name of associated corporation paid-up capital Notes associated corporation
Chiangs’ Industrial Holdings 1 f& A RE A% 1D (3) 100.00%

Limited

HHEREBRAA]
Equaltex Investment Limited

Gondmyne Limited

HEATBRAR]
Desee Limited

EBAERAR
Desko Limited

BXER AT
Goman Limited

=HhAERAF]
Koyoki Limited

1 redeemable share

2 IR Ak (3), (6) 100.00%
2 ordinary shares

100,000 A& & @Ak (3), (6) 100.00%

100,000 ordinary shares

2 I &k 3), (7) 100.00%
2 ordinary shares

2 IR Ak (3), (7) 100.00%
2 ordinary shares

2 IR &k 3), (7) 100.00%
2 ordinary shares

2 I &k 3), (7) 100.00%
2 ordinary shares

EIR AR AT 2 IR &k 3, (7) 100.00%
Mikia Limited 2 ordinary shares
REBRRA] 2 IE @R (3), (7) 100.00%
Mogin Limited 2 ordinary shares
EEAARAT 2 IE @R 3), (7) 100.00%

Potachi Limited
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hAEEEE R RER
ERITRG B
EXZBHNEIL
Approximate
percentage of the

HEH, relevant class of

BEWERZEE issued shares/

HEEE AR Interest in shares/ B paid-up capital of

Name of associated corporation paid-up capital Notes associated corporation

Ik ARAR] 2 IRE AR 3), (7) 100.00%
Parot Limited 2 ordinary shares

NEBRAR] 2 IEEAR 3), (7) 100.00%
Rikon Limited 2 ordinary shares

REBR AR 2 IREmAR 3), (7) 100.00%
Semicity Limited 2 ordinary shares

P AR AR] 2 B E B 3), (7) 100.00%
Sibeland Limited 2 ordinary shares

REBRAA] 2 g AR 3), (7) 100.00%
Sumei Limited 2 ordinary shares

Granwich Limited 1 PE (3), (6) 100.00%
1 ordinary share

N Y e 52,570,000 A% (3), (©) 75.10%
HERBER AR iR
Hong Kong Cad-Cam 52,570,000
Services Limited ordinary shares

Kadom Limited 2 [ A (3), (6) 100.00%
2 ordinary shares

BEEERARAT 8 IR E AR (3), (6) 80.00%
Keyset Development Limited 8 ordinary shares

S (REDARRQR 64 A% (3), (8 100.00%

Callan (China) Limited

A4 ANNUAL REPORT 2008
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B EE SR

Name of associated corporation

REB,
BRER 2 ER
Interest in shares/
paid-up capital

M

Notes

50

HAEEEB A REER
ERITRG BN
BEXZBHNEIL

Approximate
percentage of the
relevant class of
issued shares/
paid-up capital of
associated corporation

HESET B EBR AR
Shanghai Ciro’s Real Estate Co., Ltd.

Oriental Triumph Investments Limited

Pro-Team Pacific Limited

Tatiara Investment Company Limited

Value Creation Group Limited

EEYRFEERR AR
Chen Hsong Logistics Services
Company Limited

RIS IRA
Chen Hsong Machinery
Company, Limited

B (hE)RERRRA
Chen Hsong (PRC) Investment
Company Limited

33,593,200% 7T
BWEXR
US$33,593,200
paid-up capital

1 IREBAR
1 ordinary share

1 IRE R
1 ordinary share

2 g A
2 ordinary shares

1 iR E @A
1 ordinary share

5,000,000 A%
BIRERRTERD
5,000,000 non-voting
deferred shares

50,000,000 A%
BAREZRRIERD
50,000,000 non-voting
deferred shares

2 I E
RIERR D

2 non-voting
deferred shares
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(3), (8)

(3),9)

(3), (6)

(3), (6)

(3), (6)

(3), (6)

(3), (6)

(3), (6)

67.19%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%
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(1)

LSRR IABREEANS D
A -

It T5Cititrust (Bahamas) Limited
MERB B EZ M
Cititrust (Bahamas) Limited &/
EeEEr(ABEEIEEREE
S((EZES D ERBERRKE
2((REE2D)ZEFTA-M
ZMEES S NHREEHIEE
74.42% % 10% 2 {E B e 2w o 1R
BREHEMEGEN - AREEE
TAMEEEERCVERT
A EBEEE AR g ERIER
REFEZ AL - MBARIERSSE

5 s e
S o

Chiangs’ Industrial Holdings
Limited# 5 B B IR B74.42% 2
¥ B% # 5 - Chiangs’ Industrial
Holdings Limited 8l ACititrust
(Bahamas) Limited5c & # & ©
Cititrust (Bahamas) Limited &%&
EERZEFEA  BEES L
BIE0 - ARBEEETNERER
SZMERTA  WEEELE
AR RBIEREE S ZKIA
MR IERE A L SR -

ZERAHAREESRE - RIE
EHLAEGED - mREEER
TREGESHP —ABRT
BHA - MBRAZ L HRIERA

deN s

ZERAHREESRE - RIE
B LHAEED - ARNEEERE
ERRGEESEPAERT
#BA - MBSRBEERRIERE

RERZHEBRRESB
Gondmyne Limited A -

A4 ANNUAL REPORT 2008
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Notes:

(D

(2)

(3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

(7)

Such interests are held in the capacity as beneficial owner.

This represents the collective interest indirectly held by Cititrust
(Bahamas) Limited, trustee of two discretionary trusts, namely,
The Chiang Chen Charity Foundation (“Charity
Foundation”) and The Chiangs’ Family Foundation (“Family
Foundation”), which respectively hold 74.42% and 10% of the
issued share capital of CH Investments. By virtue of the SFO,
Dr. Chen CHIANG is deemed to be interested in the aforesaid
discretionary trusts as he is the settlor of both discretionary trusts
and may be regarded as founder of such discretionary trusts.

Industrial

Chiangs’ Industrial Holdings Limited holds 74.42% controlling
interest in CH Investments, in turn, Chiangs’ Industrial Holdings
Limited is wholly-owned by Cititrust (Bahamas) Limited. Cititrust
(Bahamas) Limited being the trustee of the Charity Foundation in
which, by virtue of the SFO, Dr. Chen CHIANG is deemed to be
interested as he is the settlor of the Charity Foundation and may
be regarded as founder of the Charity Foundation.

Such interests were held by the Family Foundation and Ms. Lai
Yuen CHIANG is deemed to be interested under the SFO by
virtue of her being one of the eligible beneficiaries of the Family
Foundation.

Such interests were held by the Family Foundation and Mr.
Chi Kin CHIANG is deemed to be interested under the SFO by
virtue of him being one of the eligible beneficiaries of the Family
Foundation.

Such interests are held by CH Investments.

Such interests are indirectly held by CH Investments through
Gondmyne Limited.



EXRREE
Report of the Directors

(8) EHREFEEAEERERARA
80%Z iR - BRIERREHR
RARA2EHERC(FE)E
RAFE - mZ(FRH)FRAFA]
#BE SIS R EER AR
67.19% 7 A o

O) EEEEHEEREEBERY
BERAABESS -

PR EXCPRREESN R-TTNF=ZA=
T—H ARAEFAHZHTHRAER
BERAR B S AATEEEE (& LES
KB RGIFEXVER) 2 Betn -« HRRERD &
B A REE S M E ERDIF352(F
BB RRRARRIIRTFERRMAZER
BEIORR - IRBEFETRIMESTT
HME RN R MR P2 msUR R

EESRERODIES 2ER
REAFER » ARFEEFRHKSHTEHA
BERATUTEZEREIR-ZFF
NEZA=FT—BHRITEZBREF
BB IRRMFES]L -

B EXFT RSN - AR B SREA M
NARFRIL EET L ER LB BER
REEFAHBEARAHEMEME
ANEERZEMSEFMED  MES -
RETRABHME 2B AM T\
BT RRNFRNRERE R RBEARLQF
EI AN - BT E TR L FE
Al o

SU

(8) CH Investments holds 80% controlling interest in Keyset
Development Limited which holds the entire interest of Callan
(China) Limited. Callan (China) Limited which, in turn, holds
67.19% controlling interest in Shanghai Ciro’s Real Estate Co.,
Ltd..

(9) Such interests are indirectly held by CH Investments through
Keyset Development Limited.

Save as disclosed above, at 31 March 2008, none of the directors or
chief executive of the Company had any interests or short positions in
the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any
associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as
recorded in the register of the Company required to be kept under
Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares or Debentures

Details of share options granted to or exercised by the directors or
chief executive of the Company during the year and their outstanding
balances at 31 March 2008 are set out in note 31 to the financial
statements.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the Company
or any of its subsidiaries a party to arrangements to enable the directors
of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisitions of
shares in or debentures of the Company or any other body corporate,
and none of the directors, chief executive or their spouse or children
under the age of 18, had any right to subscribe for securities of the
Company, or had exercised any such right during the year.
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FERREEMATRRG REEB
Rz EERKXR

RZZBZNF=ZA=+—H8 " $tERA]
EENRSTRABMAM  REZBFK
HI & 15 1 SB3361% tR 17 2 A 2 B & ac it
Precsk 2 TERR REMALTRARF

Z By R ARRE R 1D Z #E s SR B EL S I0

Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons’ Interests and
Short Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares

At 31 March 2008, so far as is known to the directors and chief
executive of the Company, the interests or short positions of substantial

shareholders and other persons in the shares and underlying shares of

the Company as recorded in the register of the Company required to be

kept under Section 336 of the SFO were set out below.

_F o
RAEQATRDRAEBRGD ZHFR Long position in shares and underlying shares of the Company
HERT
EERR G
HERD ZBRNBD L
EERRE ZBRE* Approximate
Number of Number of percentage
BREME, HE %) ordinary underlying Foey L of the issued
Name of shareholder Capacity shares shares* Total Notes  ordinary shares
BIIRE ERBEA 397,413,620 600,000 398,013,620 (1 63.56%
CH Investments Beneficial owner
Chiangs’ Industrial REEHEE 2 s 397,413,620 600,000 398,013,620 (1 63.56%
Holdings Limited Interest of controlled
corporation
Cititrust (Bahamas) ZFEA 397,413,620 600,000 398,013,620 (1 63.56%
Limited Trustee
BE EX LA AVIN 397,413,620 600,000 398,013,620 (1), (2), 63.56%
Chen CHIANG Founder of (3)
discretionary trust
ExEAA 2,000,000 1,000,000 3,000,000 (3) 0.48%
Beneficial owner
BERREEE REKE 37,826,000 - 37,826,000 - 6.04%
(BB)ERAF Investment manager
Schroder Investment
Management
(Hong Kong) Limited
Commonwealth REIESER 2 s 38,620,000 - 38,620,000 (4) 6.17%
Bank of Australia Interest of controlled
corporation
44
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Y RAPTAT AZ BRERGD 2 B m ARIEAR
DA Z BRAERT IR I 2 B i s
M SRR AREIT BN -

it -

(1) WHEBREMFZE KRG - AR
Cititrust (Bahamas) Limited B2EE¢ 2
BEEA - AR BB R K ABRE R (7
BEER  MxS B @ERG RAEERND
ThiE i EL P2 Hl| )% B Chiangs’ Industrial
Holdings LimitedfE R & 15H74.42%
2R ESMERAE o

BIREEESIMERTA  RIE
FHRMMEGED - BEE LB ERRIE
BEESIMIA - MBPERANE B
&*HF&EH&@H@F/\ °

(2) ¥E

Q) BRELIRBEBLZESG  RIEF

&ﬁﬂ%’iﬂﬂﬁ” BERER T AR BER S ()
MR RIS TR A 2 B Rk &R

BRI A s o

(4) % % W 19 BCommonwealth Bank of

Australia B £ o8 8 5 100% 12 $l 4 4 E 5
5o
B EXPTIEEIN RZEENF=ZA=

+—0B - REFESKBAEEGE33604 -
RARVBRTZELMATE: - BLES
A H A A T AR E 2 iR ) Sk AE B AR
2 HETRBRE ©

*

SU

The interests in underlying shares of equity derivatives represented
interests in options granted under the Company’s share option scheme of
which they were unissued shares.

Notes:

(1)

This represents the same parcel of shares held by CH Investments. Cititrust
(Bahamas) Limited is deemed to have interest in the relevant shares and
underlying shares by virtue of being the trustee of the Charity Foundation,
the relevant shares and underlying shares are held through its controlled
corporation, Chiangs’ Industrial Holdings Limited which holds 74.42%
controlling interest in CH Investments.

The relevant shares and underlying shares are deemed to be interested
by Dr. Chen CHIANG by virtue of the SFO as he is the settlor of the
Charity Foundation and he may be regarded as the founder of the Charity
Foundation.

Ms. Jwung Hwa MA, being the spouse of Dr. Chen CHIANG, in the capacity
of interest of spouse, is deemed to be interested in the relevant shares and
underlying shares held by Dr. Chen CHIANG by virtue of the SFO.

These shares were held by corporations controlled directly or indirectly as
to 100% by Commonwealth Bank of Australia.

Save as disclosed above, at 31 March 2008, no other parties were

recorded in the register of the Company required to be kept under
Section 336 of the SFO as having interests or short positions in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company.
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Continuing Connected Transactions

On 19 March 2007, a master agreement (the “Master Agreement”)
was entered into between Zhenjian Mould & Machinery (Shenzhen)
Company Limited (“CC-SZ”) and Chen Hsong Machinery (Shenzhen)
Company, Limited (“CHM-SZ"), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, in which the Company and its subsidiaries including
CHM-SZ would, on non-exclusive basis, purchase steel from CC-SZ for
a term of three years commencing from 1 April 2007. The transaction
value during the year amounted to approximately HK$21,238,000 (net
of value-added tax).

Dr. Chen CHIANG and Mr. Chi Kin CHIANG, who are directors of the
Company, and their respective associates together control the exercise
of 80% of the voting power at general meetings of Chen Chien Holdings
Limited, which holds the entire equity interest of CC-SZ. Therefore, CC-
SZ is a connected person of the Company as defined in the Listing Rules.
Accordingly, the purchases contemplated under the Master Agreement
constitute continuing connected transactions of the Company.

The independent non-executive directors of the Company have
reviewed the above continuing connected transactions and confirmed
that the transactions have been entered into (1) in the ordinary and
usual course of business of the Company; (2) on normal commercial
terms; and (3) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing
them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

Pursuant to rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules, the auditors of the
Company have issued the letter to the board of directors of the
Company that the above continuing connected transactions (1) have
been approved by the board of directors of the Company; (2) have been
entered into in accordance with the relevant agreements governing
the transactions; and (3) have not exceeded the cap disclosed in the
announcement of the Company dated 19 March 2007.
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Public Float

Based on the information publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the directors, the Company has maintained the
prescribed amount of public float during the year and up to the date of
this report as required under the Listing Rules.

Emolument Policy

The Group’s emolument policy, including salaries and bonuses, is in line
with the local practices where the Company and its subsidiaries operate.
Share options of the Company were granted to selected employees of
the Group under the share option scheme of the Company for attracting
and retaining high talents.

The Remuneration Committee reviews the Group’s emolument policy
and structure for the remuneration of the directors and senior
management of the Group, having regard to the Group’s operating
results, individual performance and comparable market statistics.

Auditors

Ernst & Young retire and a resolution for their re-appointment as
auditors of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

By Order of the Board

Chen CHIANG
Chairman

Hong Kong, 15 July 2008

47 SEHESE AT PR W] CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED



B BEN RS S

Independent Auditors' Report

Ell ERNST & YOUNG

= ik

# o BREKEBRATIINER
(REFEAMA L ERAA)

TAZEED (A T B &RM ) E TR EZ
HIRES0BEEFIB 2 EHEBAR A
RIZHMBHE  BERZZEZENF=A
Tt HZEZEARAREEARBR R
HEZAILFEZHRAWER  RE#E
nEBREREAESRER  UEE
GETER M EHAM B ZEE -

EEUMBBRRZEMR

ERAICEZAAERBELGAMA
GRM 2BV HHREEAREFE AT
Pl REEBKRUEBEER A FHET
ZHBHE - WEEBERT Bk
MFREHNMEER AT 2B BER
RIEBEZAMEE - AEHBERERTE
BRI EERMEB MM E AN RR
o EBENEREE A BE  hZ
EREHER 2 @5HhEt »

BBz EE

BAZEERZRAERE-NN—HKA
BDR)ENTHRORTE - REBEHANE
%o HREVBRRELER  AEM
ERBERRSE - Kbz BN ®RE
ETFAEEMAR - AR TRAR
SENRT - HEMEMA LA B
EEMEE -

A4 ANNUAL REPORT 2008

To the shareholders of Chen Hsong Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the financial statements of Chen Hsong Holdings
Limited set out on pages 50 to 139, which comprise the consolidated
and company balance sheets as at 31 March 2008, and the consolidated
income statement, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and
the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
This responsibility includes designing, implementing and maintaining
internal control relevant to the preparation and the true and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying
appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that
are reasonable in the circumstances.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on our audit. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
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AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY (continued)

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance as to whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditors consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation
and true and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31 March 2008
and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have
been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants

18/F, Two International Finance Centre,
8 Finance Street,

Central,

Hong Kong

15 July 2008
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Consolidated Income Statement

Year ended 31 March 2008

CEMTFT) (HK$'000) K15+ Notes 2008 2007
U= REVENUE 6 2,316,136 2,155,014
FHERA Cost of sales (1,688,250) (1,488,339)
EF Gross profit 627,886 666,675
E U A Rz Other income and gains 79,761 21,502
HERDHET T Selling and distribution expenses (204,087) (180,768)
1T H Administrative expenses (144,199) (140,395)
Hib & 558 Other operating expenses, net (17,098) (29,662)
BhE RN Finance costs 8 (4,419) (2,387)
i fayi/NG] Share of profits less losses

s KR e 18 of associates 1,130 2,159
BREBE AT F PROFIT BEFORE TAX 7 338,974 337,124
HiIA Tax 11 (18,129) (24,833)
A R PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 320,845 312,291
EER ATTRIBUTABLE TO:
RRARIERFTFEA Equity holders of the Company 317,829 312,276
DE R RS Minority interests 3,016 15

320,845 312,291

BRE DIVIDENDS 13 159,240 150,244
EARERFEA EARNINGS PER SHARE

EhEREF ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY

HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY 14

2K GBI Basic (HK cents) 50.8 50.2
#E OE) Diluted (HK cents) 50.6 49.8

A4 ANNUAL REPORT 2008
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

R-EZENF=ZA=+—H As at 31 March 2008
(EMTFr) (HK$'000) 15+ Notes 2008 2007
FREBEE NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Y2 - BB R Property, plant and equipment 15 709,192 650,172
A L ER Prepaid land lease payments 16 56,880 52,950
RS Goodwill 17 94,931 94,931
NI Interests in associates 19 2,394 4,570
A EEREE Available-for-sale equity investments 20 124,057 124,057
BRI E Held-to-maturity investments 21 - -
RETHIRE = Deferred tax assets 29 69,540 36,571
BEVWXE BWER Deposits for purchases of items of

HEE 2 property, plant and equipment 17,299 -
EMBNE EMG Total non-current assets 1,074,293 963,251
RENEE CURRENT ASSETS
FE Inventories 22 709,278 578,089
JEWE 5 M EBIRR Trade and bills receivables 23 874,324 675,640
A& BRERER Deposits, prepayments and

E b U BR IR other receivables 24 61,500 49,838
FE AT B e 7 Dividend receivable from an

HERE available-for-sale equity investment 37,800 -
e RRITET Cash and bank balances 25 361,744 394,721
MEVE EAEGT Total current assets 2,044,646 1,698,288
REEE CURRENT LIABILITIES
JERE 5 M EBRBRR Trade and bills payables 26 410,373 300,497
g Tax payable 22,795 16,687
HabfERTBRF N EETAME  Other payables and accruals 27 248,906 215,245
IRITER - EIKH Bank loans, unsecured 28 27,814 33,054
BB EEGT Total current liabilities 709,888 565,483
REEERE NET CURRENT ASSETS 1,334,758 1,132,805
EEAERRBAS TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES 2,409,051 2,096,056
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
As at 31 March 2008

CEMTFT) (HK$'000) K15+ Notes 2008 2007

FEREBEE NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

BLEHIBAE Deferred tax liabilities 29 16,147 10,711

BEFHE NET ASSETS 2,392,904 2,085,345

s EQUITY

ERATERFEA Equity attributable to equity holders

PR of the Company

BEITIRAR Issued share capital 30 62,623 62,416

e Reserves 32 2,318,240 2,014,962
2,380,863 2,077,378

DEBRRER Minority interests 12,041 7,967

R ARET Total equity 2,392,904 2,085,345
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#&E Chen CHIANG
FJ% Chairman
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GEEDEEHRE Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
HE-_ZTZT \F=A=+—HILFE Year ended 31 March 2008
2007
RATEREAAELR
Attributable to equity holders of the Company

BRfT Rkt EXRE Ei%9

kk  BEE  RE i U2 |

lssued  Share  Capital EXRE HEHE -REE Echange FBER hEEs BuE

it share  premium redemption  Capital  Statutory  General fluctuation Retained &3t Minority Total
(B%Tr) (HK$000) Notes capital  account  reseve  reseve  reseve  reseve  reserve  profits Total interests  equity
RZEEREMA-H  Atl April 2006 61,802 490,186 % 49336 21454 231 (16,339) 1230112 1,839,257 7483 1,846,740
5% Exchange realignment - - - - - - 60071 - 60071 469 60540
TEEER Totalincome and expense
DRERN for the year recognized

ARARTH directly in equity - - - - - - 60071 - 60071 469 60540
REFRH Profitfor the year - - - - - - - 312216 312276 15 312291
TEREIA Total income and
R expense for the year - - - - - - 60071 312276 372,347 484 372831
Bk Issue of new shares 30 4 812 - - - - - - 8676 - 8606
W1 Equity-setled share
ERERH opiion arrangements - - - 269 - - - - 269 - 269
RafEs Transfer from retained profts - - - 88 252 - - (3390) - - -
HEZSTRE Final dividend
ZR=+-ALt for the year ended
ERIRERE 31 March 2006 - - - - - - - (93238)  (93238) - (9323)
mERE Interim dividend 13 - - - - - - - [49933)  (49.933) - (49.933)
i 2
“A=+-H At 31 March 2007 62,416 493308 %" h0463° 239761 23b1F 43732 1395837 20773718 7967 2,085,345
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bm O RE S EIIR R Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
@f7?%)\¢7H 7+ HILEE Year ended 31 March 2008
2008
RATRREE AR
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
BEL Rkt EXRE Ejigs
B BEE GG i 28
lssued  Share  Capitll EARE EERE -REBE Exchange FEER RREs ERaH
et share  premium redemption  Capital  Statutory  General fluctuation Retained &3t Minority Total
(B8Tr) (HK$'000) Notes capital  account  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reseve  profits Total interests  equity
RZEELEMA-H A1 Apil 2007 62416 498,308 2% 50463 23976 2301 43732 13%837 2071318 797 2,085,345
5 EE Exchange realignment - - - - - - 132193 - 132193 1058 133251
TEEER Total income and expense
R AERY for the year recognized
BARTH directly in equity - - - - - - 132193 - 132193 1058 133251
TEERR Profit for the year - - - - - - - 31789 31789 3016 320845
RERBMARZE  Totalincome and
expense for the year - - - - - - 132193 317829 450,022 4074 454,096
BTk Issue of new shares 0 07 3146 - - - - - - 333 - 333
DA ) Equity-settled share
ERERH opfion arangements - - - 22 - - - - 25 - 25
RafEa Transfer from retained profits - - - 93 858% - - (86,749) - - -
HE-ZTHE Final dividend
ZA=+-ALE for the year ended
EERERS 31 March 2007 13 - - - - - - - (100,055) (100,055 - (100,055)
D Interim dividend 3 - - - - - - - (50087)  (50,087) - (50087)
RZFENE
=A=t+-H At 31 March 2008 62,603 H01454* 2%*  b1638* 109802*  23b1F 1759257 1476,775* 2380863 12,041 2392904
R ZEENF A=+ —HNRAEEE *  These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of HK$2,318,240,000
AEXR ZSHERAKGAREEARAR (2007: HK$2,014,962,000) in the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 March
#2318,240,000t( — T T £ F: B & 2008.
2,014,962,0007T) °
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

Year ended 31 March 2008

- iwmye

T

CEBFT) (HK$'000) M1z Notes 2008 2007
REXBCRERE CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
B A Profit before tax 338,974 337,124
FEE Adjustments for:
BMEKAK Finance costs 8 4,419 2,387
JE(ERE L N RNERRESE  Share of profits less losses of associates (1,130) (2,159)
FEUA Interest income 7 (3,823) (4,322)
A ERRIRE 2 Dividend income from an available-for-sale
fxE A equity investment 7 (37,800) -
e Depreciation 7 55,794 56,749
TR T ER 2R Recognition of prepaid land lease payments 7 1,805 1,338
HEWE - BREREZE Gain on disposal of items of
-3l property, plant and equipment 7 (84) (1,006)
W - BB R RETHE Write-off of items of
property, plant and equipment 7 58 233
= iREe B E Write-off of aged liabilities 7 (12,042) -
GFEEFEFE Provision for inventories, net 7 34,608 14,933
FEWE 5 K EEER Impairment of trade and bills
BEFER receivables, net 7 14,342 11,105
LABRE S (T ROBERCIEE A Equity-settled share option expenses 252 269
395,373 416,651
ERR N B BRFNEREEIR ) Decrease in balances with associates 4,455 1,232
FEE Increase in inventories (135,624) (6,500)
JEUWE 5 NMEBRFIEI  Increase in trade and bills receivables (188,415) (157,586)
A&~ B RIE R EAM Increase in deposits, prepayments
FEUL AR SR 0N and other receivables (7,774) (5,690)
JENE S REBEFIEI  Increase in trade and bills payables 101,287 34,146
H At fETBR R R FE AT Increase/(decrease) in other payables
BEEMm CRd) and accruals 42,562 (12,352)
KEEA RS Cash generated from operations 211,864 269,901
ERFE Interest paid (4,419) (2,387)
RO EBFEH Hong Kong profits tax refunded - 1,007
EREAENEH Hong Kong profits tax paid - (307)
RENGINRIE Overseas taxes refunded 3,028 91
BAEINEIE Overseas taxes paid (41,295) (41,055)
REER IS RAFE  Net cash inflow from operating activities 169,178 227,250
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GERERER Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

BE-_EEN\E=-A=+—RHIIEE Year ended 31 March 2008
CE#EFo) (HK$'000) K72+ Notes 2008 2007
REXBZRERE CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
BEWE - WEKEE Purchases of items of property, plant

and equipment 15 (58,450) (21,782)
BT HERZAE Additions to prepaid land lease payments 16 (3,518) -
LEWE - BRE K& Proceeds from disposal of items of property,

FriS /I8 plant and equipment 155 1,346
BUF B Interest received 3,823 4,322
BEWE - WEKEE Increase in deposits for purchases of items of

Bl property, plant and equipment (17,299) -
AE SR EE B R AR Decrease in bank deposits with

HBA=EH original maturity of more than

TEEIEFOR L three months when acquired 2,195 2,187
WEEK7IBEREFEE  Net cash outflow from investing activities (73,094) (13,927)
MEXB>RELNE CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

BATHTIRFTIS5RIA Proceeds from issue of new shares 30 3,353 8,676
MERITER New bank loans 52,254 -
EEIBITER Repayments of bank loans (60,224) (79,443)
EIRE Dividends paid (150,142) (143,171)
REEK 7IBEREEE  Net cash outflow from financing activities (154,759) (213,938)
ReERBREEEY NET DECREASE IN

2R RER CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (58,675) (615)
FYzReRIREEEY  Cash and cash equivalents

at beginning of year 363,613 357,950
MEREE) o R8T Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net 24,860 6,278

FRZBERBFELZLEY CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

AT END OF YEAR 329,798 363,613
HERBLEEY ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND
HEFZoN CASH EQUIVALENTS
He MIRTTHET Cash and bank balances 25 295,777 335,924
AE SR EE B R AR H Bank deposits with original maturity
TNR=ERZEBFR of less than three months when acquired 25 34,021 27,689
329,798 363,613
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BEBER Balance Sheet
WZEENF=A=+—H As at 31 March 2008
(EMTFr) (HK$'000) 15+ Notes 2008 2007
FREBEE NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Y2 - BB R Property, plant and equipment 15 836 936
NG 2 Interests in subsidiaries 18 816,649 718,840
BN EEEE Total non-current assets 817,485 719,776
REBEE CURRENT ASSETS
A& BRERER Deposits, prepayments and

H b U iR 3R other receivables 24 915 1,087
Re RIRTTHETT Cash and bank balances 25 4,490 16,568
BNV EBET Total current assets 5,405 17,655
REAE CURRENT LIABILITIES
HEaERBEFR N EETAE  Other payables and accruals 27 19,140 22,886
REEEFE NET CURRENT LIABILITIES (13,735) (5,231)
EEFRE NET ASSETS 803,750 714,545
Ea EQUITY
BEITIAR Issued share capital 30 62,623 62,416
f#f Reserves 32 741,127 652,129
R ARET Total equity 803,750 714,545

#2Z Chen CHIANG
F/E Chairman

#ESE Lai Yuen CHIANG
7TIECAE % Chief Executive Officer
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 March 2008
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

Chen Hsong Holdings Limited is a limited liability company incorporated
in Bermuda. The principal place of business of the Company is
located at 13-15 Dai Wang Street, Tai Po Industrial Estate, Tai Po, New
Territories, Hong Kong.

During the year, the Group was principally involved in the manufacture
and sale of plastic injection moulding machines and related products.

In the opinion of the directors, the Company’s ultimate holding
company is Cititrust (Bahamas) Limited, a company incorporated in
the Bahamas. Chen Hsong Investments Limited (“CH Investments”),
a company incorporated in Hong Kong, is the Company’s immediate
holding company.

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CONSOLIDATION

58

Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) (which include
all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared under the
historical cost convention. These financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand
(HK$'000) except when otherwise indicated.
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2.1 B RGEREE) 2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CONSOLIDATION (continued)
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Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements
of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2008. Adjustments are made
to bring into line any dissimilar accounting policies that may exist. The
results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date of acquisition,
being the date on which the Group obtains control, and continue to
be consolidated until the date that such control ceases. All significant
intercompany transactions and balances within the Group are
eliminated on consolidation.

Minority interests represent the interests of outside shareholders not
held by the Group in the results and net assets of the Company’s
subsidiaries.

2.2 IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL

REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has adopted the following new and revised HKFRSs for
the first time for the current year’s financial statements. Except for
in certain cases, giving rise to new and revised accounting policies
and additional disclosures, the adoption of these new and revised
standards and interpretation has had no material effect on these
financial statements.

HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures

HKAS 1 Amendment Capital Disclosures

HK(IFRIC)-Int 8 Scope of HKFRS 2

HK(IFRIC)-Int 9 Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives

HK(IFRIC)-Int 10 Interim Financial Reporting and Impairment

HK(IFRIC)-Int 11 HKFRS 2 — Group and Treasury Share

Transactions

SEHESE AT PR W] CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 March 2008

2.2 IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

60

The principal effects of adopting these new and revised HKFRSs are

as follows:

(a)

(b)

(c)

HKFRS 7: Financial Instruments: Disclosures

This standard requires disclosures that enable users of the financial
statements to evaluate the significance of the Group’s financial
instruments and the nature and extent of risks arising from those
financial instruments. The new disclosures are included throughout
the financial statements. While there has been no effect on the
financial position or results of operations of the Group, comparative
information has been included where appropriate.

Amendment to HKAS1: Presentation of Financial Statements:
Capital Disclosures

This amendment requires the Group to make disclosures that
enable users of the financial statements to evaluate the Group’s
objectives, policies and processes for managing capital. These
new disclosures are shown in note 37 to the financial statements.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 8: Scope of HKFRS 2

This interpretation requires HKFRS 2 to be applied to any
arrangement in which the Group cannot identify specifically some
or all of the goods or services received, for which equity instruments
are granted or liabilities (based on a value of the Group’s equity
instruments) are incurred by the Group for a consideration,
and which appears to be less than the fair value of the equity
instruments granted or liabilities incurred. As the Company has
only issued equity instruments to its employees in accordance with
the Company’s share option scheme, the interpretation has had no
effect on these financial statements.
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 March 2008

2.2 IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

61

(d) HK(IFRIC)-Int 9: Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives

(e)

Q)

This interpretation requires the date to assess whether an
embedded derivative is required to be separated from the host
contract and accounted for as a derivative is the date that the
Group first becomes a party to the contract, with reassessment
only if there is a change to the contract that significantly modifies
the cash flows. As the Group has no embedded derivative requiring
separation from the host contract, the interpretation has had no
effect on these financial statements.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 10: Interim Financial Reporting and Impairment

The Group has adopted this interpretation as of 1 April 2007,
which requires that an impairment loss recognized in a previous
interim period in respect of goodwill or an investment in either an
equity instrument classified as available-for-sale or a financial asset
carried at cost is not subsequently reversed. As the Group had no
impairment losses previously reversed in respect of such assets,
the interpretation has had no impact on the financial position or
results of operations of the Group.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 11: HKFRS 2 - Group and Treasury Share
Transactions

This interpretation requires arrangements whereby an employee is
granted rights to the Group’s equity instruments, to be accounted
for as an equity-settled scheme, even if the Group acquires the
instruments from another party, or the shareholders provide the
equity instruments needed. This interpretation also addresses the
accounting for share-based payment transactions involving two
or more entities within the Group. The interpretation has had no
material effect on these financial statements.
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 March 2008

2.3 IMPACT OF ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

62

The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs,
that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial

statements.

HKFRS 2 Amendment

HKFRS 3 (Revised)

HKFRS 8

HKAS 1 (Revised)

HKAS 23 (Revised)

HKAS 27 (Revised)

HKAS 32 and HKAS 1
Amendments

HK(FRIC)-Int 12

HK(IFRIC)-Int 13

HK(IFRIC)-Int 14

Share-based Payment — Vesting
Conditions and Cancellations!

Business Combinations*

Operating Segments!

Presentation of Financial Statements!
Borrowing Costs!

Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements*

Puttable Financial Instruments and
Obligations Arising on Liquidation!

Service Concession Arrangements?
Customer Loyalty Programmes®
HKAS 19 - The Limit on a Defined

Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding
Requirements and their Interaction?

! Effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009

2 Effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2008

3 Effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 July 2008

4 Effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009
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FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

The principal effects of these new and revised HKFRSs, which are
relevant to the Group’s operation, are as follows:

HKFRS 8, which will replace HKAS 14 Segment Reporting, specifies
how an entity should report information about its operating segments,
based on information about the components of the entity that is
available to the chief operating decision maker for the purposes of
allocating resources to the segments and assessing their performance.
This standard also requires the disclosure of information about the
products and services provided by the segments, the geographical
areas in which the Group operates, and revenue from the Group’s
major customers.

HKAS 1 separates owner and non-owner changes in equity. The
statement of changes in equity will include only details of transactions
with owners, with all non-owner changes in equity presented as a
single line. In addition, the standard introduces the statement of
comprehensive income: it presents all items of income and expense
recognized in profit or loss, together with all other items of recognized
income and expense, either in one single statement, or in two linked
statements.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 14 addresses how to assess the limit under HKAS
19 Employee Benefits, on the amount of a refund or a reduction in
future contributions in relation to a defined benefit scheme that can
be recognized as an asset, in particular, when a minimum funding
requirement exists.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the impact of
these new and revised HKFRSs upon initial application, but is not yet
in a position to state whether these new and revised HKFRSs would
have any significant impact on the Group’s results of operations and
financial position.
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FTEETBRAE 3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Fff B 2 & Subsidiaries
)R NCIDRE = NN R I S i B A subsidiary is an entity whose financial and operating policies the
IR RACEBUR - (M B EEKRES Company controls, directly or indirectly, so as to obtain benefits from
MemZ NF] ° its activities.
ME A F 2 ZEEE W ERAR BT A The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company’s income
KRRz WEmERF o RRBIRHEB AR statement to the extent of dividends received and receivable. The
W IR A B R DR ES IR © Company’s interests in subsidiaries are stated at cost less any
impairment losses.
HENT Associates
P& N RIIERHTB A RN - NEBEESR An associate is an entity, not being a subsidiary, in which the Group
Hh % EIR =MD E@O%ZEEHT%E has a long term interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity
W WA ETFERFEN A voting rights and over which it is in a position to exercise significant
influence.
REEMEHE AR CBIBREE NG The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and reserves of
HHE D RIBRENGRENER RIRER associates is included in the consolidated income statement and
HR - AEBREE A RRSIRERS consolidated reserves, respectively. The Group’s interests in associates
FOARTE AR S E RS EEFEREMARE are stated in the consolidated balance sheet at the Group’s share of
BEE  JAGAEERER - A5H net assets under the equity method of accounting, less any impairment
EHBE N T FNRR S FIEERRE losses. Unrealized gains and losses resulting from transactions between
HEZEUREERB SR NERA the Group and its associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
PR T LARESH - BRIEREIREIER AT interests in the associates, except where unrealized losses provide
REERBERNRE evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
=3-—PNC Joint ventures
BERBITINROLHKILIZ AT 1R A joint venture is an entity set up by contractual arrangement, whereby
BZeh  AEBEEME T EELE the Group and other parties undertake an economic activity. The joint
E R L WNSTIV S AVA/NCI v venture operates as a separate entity in which the Group and the other
A S E B H AL % 5 A HiEx - parties have an interest.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Joint ventures (continued)

The joint venture agreement between the venturers stipulates the
capital contributions of the joint venture parties, the duration of the
joint venture entity and the basis on which the assets are to be realized
upon its dissolution. The profits and losses from the joint venture’s
operations and any distributions of surplus assets are shared by the
venturers, either in proportion to their respective capital contributions,
or in accordance with the terms of the joint venture agreement.

A joint venture is treated as:

(@) a subsidiary, if the Company has unilateral control, directly or
indirectly, over the joint venture;

(b) an associate, if the Company does not have unilateral or joint
control, but holds, directly or indirectly, generally not less than
20% of the joint venture’s registered capital and is in a position to
exercise significant influence over the joint venture; or

(c) an equity investment accounted for in accordance with HKAS 39,
if the Company holds, directly or indirectly, less than 20% of the
joint venture’s registered capital and has neither joint control of,
nor is in a position to exercise significant influence over, the joint
venture.
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TEETHERRBEE) 3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

[EES Goodwill
WENBAREEZEE  ARKEER Goodwill arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries represents the excess
BB AN AN & B R (G EL AT g ) of the cost of the business combination over the Group’s interest in the
BREE - RFTERENBERKREE net fair value of the acquirees’ identifiable assets acquired, and liabilities
ZANHEZEEE - and contingent liabilities assumed as at the date of acquisition.
WEa AR —FEERF—H—HZ Goodwill on acquisitions for which the agreement date is on or after 1
LA BT R January 2005
WEEE BB DR EEARRNA Goodwill arising on acquisition is initially recognized in the consolidated
WRREE - %UﬁAikﬁZZKﬂﬁ HIBRK balance sheet as an asset at cost and is subsequently measured at cost
NER AR RETREEEE - less any accumulated impairment losses.
PRz BREETFETRENE - 8 The carrying amount of goodwill is reviewed for impairment annually
ERIEEMIBENE BRI or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that
BRER(E - Bl B AEEITRER the carrying value may be impaired. The Group performs its annual
e REBEFR=A=1T—R#ETH impairment test of goodwill as at 31 March.
FEA -
HETRENR  BeEaHmEBARN For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business
EEEBAZBRSREETEHAI A H combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the
EEZ RIS mPER 2 AEBSEE Group’s cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating units,
SEHBMSKIRSE T BMA7) that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
AEBNEEXBBERSGEDE TZSE irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group are
B ERAR - assigned to those units or groups of units.
REDBRTGEEENENReELE Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of the
(R eELEMAR)MATKREEEE cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units), to which the
REEE - AIRESELBMN(HREER goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
BAR) AT E e B ENREE unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than the carrying amount,
BHERREEE - s B R R EE an impairment loss is recognized. An impairment loss recognized for
BRI Z MBI - goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.
WA EERIReENEM (RS ED Where goodwill forms part of a cash-generating unit (group of cash-
BALAARI) HER 1D T a4 B AL A BP0 K TS generating units) and part of the operation within that unit is disposed
BHE - AFEETE TS X B st of, the goodwill associated with the operation disposed of is included in
EERy - BPTHE EHAEMA R R A the carrying amount of the operation when determining the gain or loss
ZEBREE - EEEELTHER on disposal of the operation. Goodwill disposed of in this circumstance
PIEARIE T E SRR e E L B is measured based on the relative values of the operation disposed of
KRB N EEEITRIE o and the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.
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3. TESHEERER) 3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
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(continued)

Excess over the cost of business combinations

Any excess of the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the acquirees’

identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over the cost

of acquisition of subsidiaries, after reassessment, is recognized

immediately in the income statement.

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a)

(b)

(c)

67

the party, directly or indirectly through one or more intermediaries,
(i) controls, is controlled by, or is under common control with, the
Group; (ii) has an interest in the Group that gives it significant
influence over the Group; or (iii) has joint control over the Group;

the party is an associate;

the party is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or its holding companies;

the party is a close member of the family of any individual referred
toin (a) or (c);

the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly controlled or
significantly influenced by or for which significant voting power
in such entity resides with, directly or indirectly, any individual
referred to in (c) or (d); or

the party is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of the

employees of the Group, or of any entity that is a related party of
the Group.
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TEETHERRBEE) 3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
FeMEE(FBRM RHE Impairment of non-financial assets other than goodwill
WEBRBATHAREXNERKGEEE Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment
ETFEREAIR(FE BERIEE testing for an asset is required (other than inventories, deferred tax
E- - eRMEEREBRSIN - Bl assets, financial assets and goodwill), the asset’s recoverable amount
ZEEMIKEIEEE - AJEESREILE is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s
ESBReELBEMNERABEIENT or cash-generating unit’s value in use and its fair value less costs to sell,
EREERA(UREEAE) - WHE and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
FIEEMETE  WHFBHEELREL generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other
HRARE EBIREMEEREER assets or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is
BIFIREMA - FELLER T AT UKl & 58 determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.
MEEMBEMNRGELBAMETE o
WEBEENEERDERL KD An impairment loss is recognized only if the carrying amount of an
SRR T LAMER - REHGEREER asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the
HErBRRSRER T RLIREETISFT estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using
M EKREEREESEREHRT a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
BIITIRERITREIRE < WEBERES time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. An impairment
HF B RN - loss is charged to the income statement in the period in which it
arises.
REEFRASTESESBERRERL An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there
AIE R AR EEE BT o is any indication that previously recognized impairment losses may
WEIRZEDRR - AlgfatTlkEs no longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication exists, the
o BEMRNEERERE(HER recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognized impairment
INEGHRRANEEEENRESFER loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been a
fET B R - MR BRI BE TS change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of
SRR B FEI R & EERRME that asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that
EEmEENREEGIRITE, #iY would have been determined (net of any depreciation/amortization)
&) o WIEBEMBENEEBBEA had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years. A
Wk o reversal of such impairment loss is credited to the income statement in
the period in which it arises.
AEHt ANNUAL REPORT 2008 68



R .. ’)( J
Notes to Financial Statements

31 March 2008

B %5 2R 3= MY =E

—ZEN\F=A=+—H

3. FEEHBERBESE) 3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
ME - BRERZEBERITE Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
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Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress,
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its
purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset
to its working condition and location for its intended use. Expenditure
incurred after items of property, plant and equipment have been put
into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is normally charged to
the income statement in the period in which it is incurred. In situations
where it can be clearly demonstrated that the expenditure has resulted
in an increase in the future economic benefits expected to be obtained
from the use of an item of property, plant and equipment, and where
the cost of the item can be measured reliably, the expenditure is
capitalized as an additional cost of that asset or as a replacement.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the
cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual value
over its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used for this
purpose are as follows:

Buildings in Hong Kong — Over the lease terms
Buildings outside Hong Kong - 15 to 60 years
Plant, machinery, furniture — 2to 15 years

and other equipment
Freehold land is not depreciated.
Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different

useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a reasonable basis
among the parts and each part is depreciated separately.
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(continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation (continued)

Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its
use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognized
in the income statement in the year the asset is derecognized is the
difference between the net sale proceeds and the carrying amount of
the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents plants under construction, which
is stated at cost less any impairment losses, and is not depreciated.
Cost comprises the direct costs of construction during the period of
construction. Construction in progress is reclassified to the appropriate
category of property, plant and equipment when completed and ready
for use.

Research and development costs

All research costs are charged to the income statement as incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products is
capitalized and deferred only when the Group can demonstrate the
technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will
be available for use or sale, its intention to complete and its ability
to use or sell the asset, how the asset will generate future economic
benefits, the availability of resources to complete the project and the
ability to measure reliably the expenditure during the development.
Product development expenditure which does not meet these criteria

is expensed when incurred.



B %5 2R 3= MY =E

—ZTN\F=RA=+—H

TEETHERBEE)

RERHMERMEE

TRIEENTRERRFAXFEAE -
MER G ERBIERAE -

REBPIIREREAETESRMEED
o WEAREE ZBRATREE
EHAHEE S -

ERBEATEAMBEZ REEHRK

RHABAEEARBERHEZE
EZRAH) TURE - EEBRTEA
K& TSR R — RIS R E BT
—EHEARKRINEECSREER

& o
= TA&/EI&

ERMEYRIETEE SR A EENRE
B AEM ST ERE 2 IITESR
BE - R FEERRUBENXINEA
BEERAARR O BIERRERR - &
FHIR VAN G AU 2 (T I aloe
BRAE  IRRBELANERIZMK
AR DB 2 ER - BREKRELE
ERE R UGB RS R IORE
5 S BB B A Fr ot AMREE SR o

e

I

50

Notes to Financial Statements

31 March 2008

71

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Investments and other financial assets

When financial assets are recognized initially, they are measured at fair
value, plus, directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group determines the classification of its financial assets after
initial recognition and, where allowed and appropriate, re-evaluates
this designation at the balance sheet date.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognized
on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group commits to purchase
or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the period
generally established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. Such
assets are subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective
interest method less any allowance for impairment. Amortized cost is
calculated taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition
and includes fees that are an integral part of the effective interest
rate and transaction costs. Gains and losses are recognized in the
income statement when the loans and receivables are derecognized or
impaired, as well as through the amortization process.
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TESHBRBESD) 3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

RERHMESRMEE(Z) Investments and other financial assets (continued)
R E Held-to-maturity investments
EAn] &l ok AT 5 R B I 8 e 21V 27 Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
A MASEEHENEEBREE I and fixed maturity are classified as held-to-maturity when the Group
ERHHEITENEREED RRFHE has the positive intention and ability to hold to maturity. Held-to-
BIEARE o BB LABESHIB B ARET 2 - maturity investments are subsequently measured at amortized cost
AT DR E R o BEHE R ANE AT less any allowance for impairment. Amortized cost is computed as the
SEABRMSRRASER - NIBIAE amount initially recognized minus principal repayments, plus or minus
B R R EETE B AR £ 58 E1 5 B the cumulative amortization using the effective interest method of any
SR ERMARFTEE - WA ERES difference between the initially recognized amount and the maturity
BIFBAEHNEZER 2RAEGHTX amount. This calculation includes all fees and points paid or received
BRSO E R IR - LB E R F between parties to the contract that are an integral part of the effective
X S5ERRAEHMEMETNE interest rate, transaction costs and all other premiums and discounts.
TRl R B ERD o tNRITE REH MRS Gains and losses are recognized in the income statement when the
WETERE - HEFEE (R investments are derecognized or impaired, as well as through the
) il R NRER o amortization process.
AR ETHEE Available-for-sale financial assets
AEEESREE A LT RIELTRAR Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative financial assets in
BEHEPIZIIENTECREE ZESRE listed and unlisted equity securities that are designated as available
EREAAHDERI THEALRMEM for sale or are not classified in any of the other two categories. After
MEXERIA - RYIIRTERE - AR E initial recognition, available-for-sale financial assets are measured at
TREBEZATERE - B =BSER fair value, with gains or losses recognized as a separate component
RBE RN EEREHHER of equity until the investment is derecognized or until the investment
SEEIREWETRE - AT is determined to be impaired, at which time the cumulative gain or
mER BT RMSERT AR K loss previously reported in equity is included in the income statement.
A o FTERELZ R BRI B2 BITE AT & Interest and dividends earned are reported as interest income and
WA BWA 23R - R T X[ s dividend income, respectively, and are recognized in the income

RIPME 2 BER R R R A Bt statement as “Other income” in accordance with the policies set out
WA o 5B E EE 2 RERIBRIK for “Revenue recognition” below. Losses arising from the impairment
mRERR AHEESREEREE of such investments are recognized in the income statement as
Bl “Impairment losses on available-for-sale financial assets”.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets (continued)

When the fair value of unlisted equity securities cannot be reliably
measured because (i) the variability in the range of reasonable fair value
estimates is significant for that investment or (ii) the probabilities of the
various estimates within the range cannot be reasonably assessed and
used in estimating fair value, such securities are stated at cost less any
impairment losses.

Fair value

The fair value of investments that are actively traded in organized
financial markets is determined by reference to quoted market
bid prices at the close of business at the balance sheet date. For
investments where there is no active market, fair value is determined
using valuation techniques. Such techniques include using recent
arm’s length market transactions; reference to the current market value
of another instrument which is substantially the same; a discounted
cash flow analysis; and option pricing models.

Impairment of financial assets
The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any

objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets
is impaired.
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TESHBRRBESE) 3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
SREERE(E) Impairment of financial assets (continued)
LR RIKAGHE S BE Assets carried at amortized cost
INRB B EN SR 7% A LA 518 HOPK AR 5T If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on loans and
BEZEN  EBUREREFEIHREES receivables or held-to-maturity investments carried at amortized cost
REEE @ FFEAREmEERGERE has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference
ZEERETBERREE ZRKE between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
EIEK) RIS EREF R (BN )58 MR future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been
FTERANERF )R EREE 2 incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest
B ERBEUERRE - EEEECEE rate (i.e., the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition). The
B BBE B PR R BEERR B (R carrying amount of the asset is reduced either directly or through the
o RESEN N ERAERAR © use of an allowance account. The amount of the impairment loss is
FER B REETATER - mATA TS recognized in the income statement. Loans and receivables together
BERgEETAER - ISR RER with any associated allowance are written off when there is no realistic
R R B R EAS TaEss o prospect of future recovery and all collateral has been realized or has

been transferred to the Group.
LATZ B - (e R ERIB SRR If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases
i 2 RARE FEREBERERE and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after
FrEsd 2 E1FHERAN: - BB BB the impairment was recognized, the previously recognized impairment
IRBOATER 2 REEE - RNEEE loss is reversed by adjusting the allowance account. Any subsequent
A (WEEEREEILESRHE#HEE reversal of an impairment loss is recognized in the income statement,
RIS + BNE(RDREE 18 2 H & B 04 to the extent that the carrying value of the asset does not exceed its
RIERATERALRR © amortized cost at the reversal date.
MEHREMBUEERME - REEHE In relation to trade and other receivables, a provision for impairment
BHOINEBAENEEIEHERY is made when there is objective evidence (such as the probability of
R E 2 SR AR - TS E insolvency or significant financial difficulties of the debtor and significant
ERBHRHESABKTFFEZE changes in the technological, market economic or legal environment
NEE) B R AR S B R B EUEVR that have an adverse effect on the debtor) that the Group will not be
BEERRAG R AE R 2 FT 8 5B E able to collect all of the amounts due under the original terms of an
HRERE - RKARIB ZREE AR invoice. The carrying amount of the receivables is reduced through the
BERMAR - REREBEBEETE use of an allowance account. Impaired debts are derecognized when
BEEIWEIR - B EBEEER - they are assessed as uncollectible.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on an unquoted
equity instrument that is not carried at fair value because its fair value
cannot be reliably measured has been incurred, the amount of the loss
is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the
current market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Impairment
losses on these assets are not reversed.

Available-for-sale financial assets

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount comprising
the difference between its cost (net of any principal payment and
amortization) and its current fair value, less any impairment loss
previously recognized in the income statement, is transferred from
equity to the income statement. A provision for impairment is made for
available-for-sale equity investments when there has been a significant
or prolonged decline in the fair value below its cost or where other
objective evidence of impairment exists. The determination of what is
“significant” or “prolonged” requires judgement. Impairment losses
on equity instruments classified as available-for-sale are not reversed
through the income statement.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part

of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognized where:

e the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;

e the Group retains the rights to receive cash flows from the asset,
but has assumed an obligation to pay them in full without material
delay to a third party under a “pass-through” arrangement; or
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3. FEEHBRBESE) 3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
BHEREIAETRMEE(2) Derecognition of financial assets (continued)

s AKECEFRHEWNZREEMS
BR8N () BELA
BEZBREMRER MBI : 2(i)
I mE R AR B % IR B E AR KA
R ER - BEEEEZIBREELZ
Y IIRE

AR E D R WA REESER
TRE R - B EERARE LA
BEZEAFNRER LB - B &S
BLREEZEGIE  ZREERER
AR R RREERBE S RZIRE
E - BB NREASEN D BREEF
thz —TBRE CEEREEDAZLRE
EZREREEMASENEAEREKE
HELRAREER/E)FE -

D#ERNEAHEzERMEE(BE
FFRERRES)

THAEERENEZRZERN - &
NN - Mt BERREE - &)
BAFERERRIERZIRATE - B
& 18 B BRI BOE LA 3518 e R AR 5T
B B2 FEL TNEBRERIN - R
ZIER T RIARRATER - BREFIE S H
PR TR 2 [ BB RS JHERR

MRBERERER AR HER
I sHAZ ) M s R R ERR, -

A4 ANNUAL REPORT 2008

76

e the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the
asset and either (i) has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, or (ii) has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.

Where the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an
asset and has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the asset
is recognized to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement in the
asset. Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over
the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that
the Group could be required to repay.

Financial liabilities at amortized cost (including interest-bearing
loans and borrowings)

Financial liabilities including trade and bills payables, other payables
and interest-bearing loans and borrowings are initially stated at fair
value less directly attributable transaction costs and are subsequently
measured at amortized cost, using the effective interest method unless
the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case they
are stated at cost. The related interest expense is recognized within
“finance costs” in the income statement.

Gains and losses are recognized in the income statement when
the liabilities are derecognized as well as through the amortization
process.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing
liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification
is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and a recognition
of a new liability, and the difference between the respective carrying
amounts is recognized in the income statement.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value.
Cost is determined on the weighted average basis and, in the case of
work in progress and finished goods, comprises direct materials, direct
labour and an appropriate proportion of overheads. Net realizable
value is based on estimated selling prices less any estimated costs to
be incurred to completion and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement, cash and cash
equivalents comprise cash on hand, bank balances and bank deposits,
and short term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value, and have a short maturity of generally within three months
when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand
and form an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the balance sheets, cash and bank balances
comprise cash on hand, bank balances and bank deposits, which are
not restricted as to use.
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(continued)

Provisions

A provisionis recognized when a present obligation (legal or constructive)
has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable that a future
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, provided
that a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognized
for a provision is the present value at the balance sheet date of the
future expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation.
The increase in the discounted present value amount arising from the
passage of time is included in finance costs in the income statement.

Provisions for product warranties granted by the Group on certain
products are recognized based on sales volume and past experience
of the level of repairs and returns, discounted to their present values
as appropriate.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax is
recognized in the income statement, or in equity if it relates to items
that are recognized in the same or a different period directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are
measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the balance sheet date between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.
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3. TESHEERREZ) 3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
R8st (42) Income tax (continued)
T FERT S = B e MR AT Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary
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where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with interests
in subsidiaries and associates, where the timing of the reversal
of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable

ARGZEREERAETGERR that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
AR - BIBEHISN future.
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Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary

differences, carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses,

to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against

which the deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward of

unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized, except:

where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary
differences arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability
in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time
of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
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o HNPLHBARREE R e in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with
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only recognized to the extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit
will be available against which the temporary differences can be
utilized.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Income tax (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance
sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilized. Conversely, previously unrecognized
deferred tax assets are reassessed at each balance sheet date and
are recognized to the extent that it is probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilized.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply to the period when the asset is realized or the liability
is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally
enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and
the same taxation authority.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized when it is probable that the economic benefits
will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be measured reliably,
on the following bases:

(@) from the sale of goods, when the significant risks and rewards
of ownership have been transferred to the buyer, provided that
the Group maintains neither managerial involvement to the degree
usually associated with ownership, nor effective control over the
goods sold;

(b) service fee income, when the services have been rendered;
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(continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

(c) interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective interest
method by applying the rate that discounts the estimated future
cash receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument
to the net carrying amount of the financial asset; and

(d) dividend income, when the shareholders’ right to receive payment
has been established.

Pre-operating expenses

Pre-operating expenses represent expenses incurred prior to the
commencement of commercial operations and are charged to the
income statement when incurred.

Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of
assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating leases.
Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable under the operating
leases are charged to the income statement on the straight-line basis
over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are initially stated
at cost and subsequently recognized on the straight-line basis over the
lease terms.

Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the directors are recognized as a liability
only when they have been approved by the shareholders in a general
meeting and declared.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared, because
the Company’s Bye-Laws grant the directors the authority to declare
interim dividends. Consequently, interim dividends are recognized
immediately as a liability when they are proposed and declared.
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TESHBRRBESE) 3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
Fhit Foreign currencies
ZEV MR ABE(TIRRAR) 2 EE These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which
k2G2S AEEB TR AT is the Company’s functional and presentation currency. Each entity in
BITAEHIGEER - M AR E the Group determines its own functional currency and items included
WMERAZIBBHAZNEEETH < Hh in the financial statements of each entity are measured using that
R HE RSB N ESIER functional currency. Foreign currency transactions are initially recorded
AR - REZERUINE BB 2 BEE using the functional currency rates ruling at the date of the transactions.
EESERZA 2 EKEREHR Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
H - frAZERAMGRR - REBEINEE retranslated at the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the
SR B ZIFEBIRBIRTBRR 5 A balance sheet date. All differences are taken to the income statement.
B ERBE - BRBINERTEFEZ Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
FEBIEFIRETATEE A ZERR foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of
Ho the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in
a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date
when the fair value was determined.
BT HINEBAT - RiEtE AR 28 Thefunctional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries and associates
BEEWIFET - WEER - ZZEQFZ are currencies other than Hong Kong dollars. As at the balance sheet
BEENBEUREEB ZERBE AR date, the assets and liabilities of these entities are translated into the
RAIZEWELR - MzFERF 2 WEmR presentation currency of the Company at the exchange rates ruling at
RENZ IETFEERERGET - [ the balance sheet date, and their income statements are translated
REBGTAELFBEE -  RNEEIMN into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for the
NEIE - R EIMD S E R ER year. The resulting exchange differences are included in the exchange
BRI RAT BRSO UGS RIER © fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign entity, the deferred
cumulative amount recognized in equity relating to that particular
foreign operation is recognized in the income statement.
BEZEHERERMES © BINTEAR For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement, the cash
ZHeRERAHH R ERBE BE flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into Hong Kong dollars
T BINMBARFAREELEZR S at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently
MERFEANZ METFHIEZRERE recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout
JC ° the year are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year.
82
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(continued)
EEEF Employee benefits
(a) RIKTEE (a) Pension schemes
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The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefits scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for those
employees who are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme.
Contributions are made based on a certain percentage of the
employees’ basic salaries and are charged to the income statement
as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF
Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in an independently administered fund. The
Group’s employer contributions vest fully with the employees when
contributed into the MPF Scheme.

Prior to the MPF Scheme becoming effective, the Group operated
a defined contribution retirement benefits scheme (the “DCRB
Scheme”) for those employees who were eligible and had elected
to participate in the DCRB Scheme. The DCRB Scheme operates
in a similar way to the MPF Scheme, except that when an
employee leaves the Group prior to his/her interest in the DCRB
Scheme vesting fully, the ongoing contributions payable by the
Group would be reduced by the relevant amount of the forfeited
employer contributions.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in the Mainland
China are required to participate in a central pension scheme
(the “Central Scheme”) which is operated by the local municipal
governments. The contributions payable by these subsidiaries to
the Central Scheme, which are based on a certain percentage
of the salaries of their employees, are charged to the income
statement as they become payable in accordance with the rules of
the Central Scheme.
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3. TEESTHRBERE) 3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
EEER(E) Employee benefits (continued)
(a) BRUK25E(E) (a) Pension schemes (continued)
BiRaELEEEEMER - KRE As required by the Taiwanese Labour Standard Law, the Group’s
EESE B R RRI—IARER subsidiaries in Taiwan operate a funded defined benefits pension
EREAERRSFEI(E5T8)) - scheme (the “Old Scheme”) and make monthly contributions to
WRGARZERKRERESHT & the retirement fund to meet employees’ retirement and termination
EERBEBARREKIERE 2EF - benefits entitlements. The fund is administered by the Employees’
RN EHEHYE TRNERSE Retirement Fund Committee (the “Committee”) and is deposited
BEZEw ([Z8g]) 81 1M under the Committee’s name with a government approved
ZEEg AR F AN —BEEITHE financial institution, which acts as the trustee. The expected costs
EELEAZSRIME - RZES of providing pensions under the Old Scheme are charged to the
EIFTIRLR RS MTERINAE - 81 income statement over the periods during which the employees
EEREEERG TEREREM provide the related services to the Group’s subsidiaries in Taiwan.

BARMMEA S ERPHIE -

RZZZRTF - 8EBUNEE] T In 2005, the Taiwan government amended the related pension
BHRIKEETE - M TIRARS K scheme by adding a new contributory pension scheme (the “New
Bldr - 1G0T I HERER KRS E Scheme”) in the Labour Pension Act, which became effective on
gl #r5T8l] WARZZZTRHF LA 1 July 2005. According to the amended retirement regulations,
—HAER - IBEFEFTRERKARA] - the employees could choose to either select the New Scheme or
EEREERENTEIEEE to stay with the Old Scheme whatever they want. The obligation of
T8l - REEESE B ARE Group’s subsidiaries in Taiwan to those employees selecting the
BETHTENEENETAEEE New Scheme is to contribute the required portion of the monthly
BIERE AW RO ETxT compensation, to the government designated account since the
BITHEERE, - BAEEERE election, while the Group’s subsidiaries in Taiwan are still liable
WEARNEBEREFENR_Z under the Old Scheme for the portion pertaining to the service
THF+A—HAEBERESTFH years prior to 1 July 2005.

B o
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3. FEEHBRBE®RE) 3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
EER/RI(E) Employee benefits (continued)
(b) BERREHZTNIXES (b) Share-based payment transactions

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Employees
(including directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the form
of share-based payment transactions, whereby employees render
services as consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled
transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees is measured
by reference to the fair value at the date at which they are granted.
The fair value is determined by an external valuer using a binomial
model. In valuing equity-settled transactions, no account is taken
of any performance conditions, other than conditions linked to
the price of the shares of the Company (“market conditions”), if
applicable.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognized, together with
a corresponding increase in equity, over the period in which the
performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled, ending on the
date on which the relevant employees become fully entitled to the
award (the “vesting date”). The cumulative expense recognized
for equity-settled transactions at each balance sheet date until the
vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has
expired and the Group’s best estimate of the number of equity
instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge or credit to the
income statement for a period represents the movement in the
cumulative expense recognized as at the beginning and end of
that period.

No expense is recognized for awards that do not ultimately vest,
except for awards where vesting is conditional upon a market
condition, which are treated as vesting irrespective of whether
or not the market condition is satisfied, provided that all other
performance conditions are satisfied.
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3. FESHBEXRBESE) 3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

EEEF(E)

Employee benefits (continued)

(b) BERBREHZTIXGZ(E) (b) Share-based payment transactions (continued)
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Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as
a minimum an expense is recognized as if the terms had not
been modified. In addition, an expense is recognized for any
modification, which increases the total fair value of the share-based
payment arrangement, or is otherwise beneficial to the employee
as measured at the date of modification.
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Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it
had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet

) R FE R HO (AR 52 1 & AR AR, o
AT i R SR A RN A (AR
Frmb - WREAKHEBNER
BN - BRI MR g a0 £
LA A3 R RN IE R T B IR -

RTEBEENEITESD
v YN E%ﬁiﬂxé’%?’r'h’

AEED RN EBMERE LS
257 B8 17X LA RS S A5 O S B 0 38 O
AR - EAGE BB REERF2
FEAR _ET_F+—AtRZ
BREBR_ZZRFMA—HA
fe) R 5 I A0 DA RSCRE S A Ry SR B - A
k-FERFNA-ARZERE
FIER AR HE -

recognized for the award is recognized immediately. However, if a
new award is substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated
as a replacement award on the date that it is granted, the cancelled
and new awards are treated as if they were a modification of the
original award, as described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional
share dilution in the computation of earnings per share.

The Group has adopted the transitional provisions of HKFRS 2 in
respect of equity-settled awards and has applied HKFRS 2 only
to equity-settled awards granted after 7 November 2002 that had
not vested by 1 April 2005 and to those granted on or after 1 April
2005.

fEERA

Borrowing costs

-

EERAREBREHRNERERERS
X e in the period in which they are incurred.

Borrowing costs are recognized as expenses in the income statement

A4 ANNUAL REPORT 2008 8 6
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4., EXSEHEE 4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

mEASET B RAR - BIEEAFD
AR ERRE ANz kS  FAX &
ERBEARIREBEZZHREAE 24
AR - A WERR RG2S
ERKRAREEHARARRITELZ
BEENMABREFELEAFE

CEROLEESES

AEAREER T —HBFEZEERR
ERAEAFEAREZRREERR
RiEE A2 H £ BT ARAE R
AT o

(@) EERE

AEEELBEETAERGR
B HEEIERECHRESERSE
7z 8 B EEFE LG - AEHE
REEERLAEEERARSED
B zEMRRESREFL G
it MEEEABFTRERFEZRSE
RenB2HE R-_TTN\F=
A=+—R BEzZEEEREY
94,931,000 ( = EF 5 : B
94,931,0007T ) ° B FHE 2 F 15
BOIMNMEELT

87

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities, and
the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the reporting date. However,
uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in
outcomes that could require a material adjustment to the carrying

amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the balance sheet date, that have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year, are discussed as below.

(a) Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least on an
annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value in use of the
cash-generating units to which the goodwill is allocated. Estimating
the value in use requires the Group to make an estimate of the
expected future cash flows from the cash-generating unit and also
to choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value of those cash flows. The carrying amount of goodwill as at 31
March 2008 was HK$94,931,000 (2007: HK$94,931,000). More
details of the impairment assessment are given in note 17.

SEHESE AT PR W] CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED
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AEEZEEEERRHRETE
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AFHERBERE  WRERET
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AHEREA -

(c) BWE SRR REL AaT

BERAHEBMERKE S NEE
RFORER - AEEEZEREL
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EIEEER o B AR BEYE TR
B2 YR TT S EERIRE B -

5. 2¥EH

DEREMARBESBERA LS

(i

P E
% R

HeEBDHIE

(i) MEBHBERIREDERE

I o
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

(b) Estimation regarding provision for inventories

(c)

Management of the Group reviews the inventory ageing analysis
on a periodic basis for those aged inventories. This involves
comparison of the carrying value of the aged inventory items
with the respective fair value less costs to sell. The purpose is to
ascertain whether provision is required to be made in the financial
statements for any obsolete and slow-moving items. In addition,
physical counts on all inventories are carried out on a periodic
basis in order to determine whether provision needs to be made in
respect of any obsolete and defective inventories identified.

Estimation regarding impairment of trade and bills receivables

In determining whether impairment of trade and bills receivables
is required, the Group takes into consideration the ageing status
and the likelihood of collection. Following the identification
of objective evidence for potential impairment of debts, the
responsible personnel will discuss with the relevant customers and
report to management on the recoverability. Individual impairment
allowance is only made for those impaired receivables that are
unlikely to be collected.

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION

88

Segment information is presented by way of two segment formats:

(i

(ii)

on a primary segment reporting basis, by geographical segment;
and

on a secondary segment reporting basis, by business segment.
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5.

89

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

The principal activity of the Group is the manufacture and sale of plastic
injection moulding machines and related products, which is managed
according to the geographical location of customers. Each of the
Group’s geographical segments, based on the location of customers,
represents a strategic business unit that offers products to customers
located in different geographical areas.

The Group’s geographical segments are as follows:

(a) The PRC (including Mainland China and Hong Kong);

(b) Taiwan; and

(c) Other overseas countries (including other Asian countries, the
Middle East, Americas and Europe).

In determining the Group’s geographical segments, revenue and assets
are attributed to the segments based on the location of the customers.

(a) Geographical segments based on the location of customers
The following tables present revenue, results, certain assets,

liabilities and expenditure information for the Group’s geographical
segments.

SEHESE AT PR W] CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED
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5. pEERE) 5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

(a) BEFMEIE(E) (a) Geographical segments based on the location of customers

(continued)

RYIIEFH
W=D
Segment revenue
from external customers

ES Vag |

Segment results

REE Group
CEMTFoT) (HK$'000) 2008 2007 2008 2007
FEI(BIERB) PRC (including Hong Kong) 1,588,771 1,491,947 235,750 304,517
=y Taiwan 257,159 238,611 25,636 18,388
HibBINER Other overseas countries 470,206 424 456 129,688 66,254
2,316,136 2,155,014 391,074 389,159
REDUWA R U= Unallocated income and gains 3,823 4,322
ERKRES Corporate and unallocated
egant expenses (52,634) (56,129)
BhE RN Finance costs (4,419) (2,387)
FE(EH & R A Share of profits less losses
i KR E 1B of associates 1,130 2,159
PR Al 7 Profit before tax 338,974 337,124
EENE B8ESE
Segment assets Segment liabilities
REE Group
CEMTFT) (HK$'000) 2008 2007 2008 2007
FEI(BIERB) PRC (including Hong Kong) 2,508,207 2,110,473 447,133 352,848
=) Taiwan 234,212 217,158 102,478 77,152
E MG NEIR Other overseas countries 270,565 265,078 109,668 85,742
3,012,984 2,592,709 659,279 515,742
NI Interests in associates 2,394 4,570 - -
RN EE Unallocated assets 103,561 64,260 - -
RKe&EHBEE Unallocated liabilities - - 66,756 60,452
3,118,939 2,661,539 726,035 576,194

A4 ANNUAL REPORT 2008
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5.

(@) BEFHESER(E)

(b)

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

(a) Geographical segments based on the location of customers

(continued)
Other segment information
WERESHE  HtkERSIH (BA) i=&N::53
Depreciation and Other non-cash Capital

amortization expenses/(income) expenditure

AEE Group
CE¥FT) (HK$'000) 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
# PRC
(RIEER) (including Hong Kong) 51,809 52,045 41,720 24260 55,360 19,536
=y Taiwan 2,190 2,584 2,850 (554) 761 900
HibBINHER Other overseas countries 3,600 3,458 4,606 1,828 5,847 1,346
57,599 58,087 49,176 25,534 61,968 21,782
REEMIYSE (b) Geographical segments based on the location of assets
EESE
Segment assets
AEE Group
(BMFor) (HK$000) 2008 2007
FE(BIEERB) PRC (including Hong Kong) 2,572,890 2,178,740
& Taiwan 440,094 413,969
3,012,984 2,592,709
RERE N A Interests in associates 2,394 4,570
REDEE Unallocated assets 103,561 64,260
3,118,939 2,661,539

91
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5. 2¥ER#E) 5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
(b) REEMEIE(E) (b) Geographical segments based on the location of assets
(continued)
EXEX
Capital expenditure
REE Group
(BB FT) (HK$'000) 2008 2007
FE(BIEEBD) PRC (including Hong Kong) 60,745 20,101
=y Taiwan 1,223 1,681
61,968 21,782
(c) #¥58 (c) Business segments
REEO% A 2 Wizs R EETIR Over 90% of the Group’s revenue and assets are attributable to
BREENMIHE TR AEER the manufacture and sale of plastic injection moulding machines
At WEZHNEEH B2 DM - and related products. Therefore, no analysis by business segment
is presented.
6. W= 6. REVENUE
Wa(MARERZ &) IEF RN HE Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents the net invoiced
BREZE  RERERESM M value of goods sold during the year, after allowances for returns and
TEREEBERFMZIRS ° trade discounts, excluding intra-group transactions.
92
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31 March 2008

7. PROFIT BEFORE TAX
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Notes to Financial Statements
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The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

FlIE= =
(BT IT) (HK$'000) [f15# Notes 2008 2007
EHFERA Cost of inventories sold 1,688,250 1,488,339
e Depreciation 15 55,794 56,749
AN E R R Recognition of prepaid land
lease payments 16 1,805 1,338

HEME - WER&E Gain on disposal of items of

i property, plant and equipment* (84) (1,006)
W - BB KT Write-off of items of

property, plant and equipment 15 58 233

A HERERIRE 2 Dividend income from an available-

A% B A for-sale equity investment* (37,800) -
R+ RIEFLE Minimum lease payments under operating

HETz&ERAES T leases of leasehold land and buildings 11,397 10,999
I LB R~ Research and development costs*** 20,550 14,620
Gl e Auditors’ remuneration 1,731 1,557
BI@RAEZE (E=W2 Employee benefits expenses (excluding

BRON— H13E9) directors’ emoluments — note 9):

T & K EH Wages and salaries 249,730 220,048

LA SR 2 - O B IR =2 1 Equity-settled share option expenses 46 18

RIS T B Pension scheme contributions 14,695 12,522
FEE 5 K ZIBERR Impairment of trade and bills

BT RE receivables, net*** 14,342 11,105
FEERFR Provision for inventories, net** 34,608 14,933
DE 5, 2 B RE Foreign exchange differences, net*** (31,492) (6,801)
HMEMA Interest income* (3,823) (4,322)
SRR A AT Write-off of aged liabilities* (12,042) -
* REHBECRERGAKRGZRZIHA *  These items are included in “Other income and gains” on the face of the

A Rz IR e consolidated income statement.

* ZBHEBRERGEERER ZITHEENK **  This item is included in “Cost of sales” on the face of the consolidated

NI

o ZEHBERERGEERERZIHM

KEXHFEIN -

income statement.

the consolidated income statement.

93

*** These items are included in “Other operating expenses, net” on the face of

SEHESE AT PR W] CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED



Bt 7% ¥R = fif = Notes to Financial Statements

—2P\F=A=+-H 31 March 2008
8. WERA 8. FINANCE COSTS
rEE Group
(BEFT) (HK$°000) 2008 2007
REFAEEEEZ Interest on bank loans wholly
HR1TE A B repayable within five years 4,419 2,387
9. EEff® 9. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS
BB ETR B R E B QREHIE161 Directors’ emoluments for the year disclosed pursuant to the Listing
B FAESHSEERT - Rules and Section 161 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance are
as follows:
BEE Group
CEMTFr) (HK$'000) 2008 2007
e Fees:
EMITES Non-executive directors - -
B IEMITES Independent non-executive directors 525 443
HEme : Other emoluments:
o - RBE R B Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 12,170 12,148
FRIREMRIELT Performance related bonuses 15,447 18,377
LA RS A8 S 1 O B S A Ui 2 Equity-settled share option benefits 206 251
RIRE TR Pension scheme contributions 48 48
28,396 31,267
AEE - BEQTBRETS - AESS In prior years, certain directors were granted share options, in respect
MEZFRENRB FTASEER TH of their services to the Group, under the share option schemes of the
IhE - FEAE RN W ISk 2 M5 Company, further details of which are set out in note 31 to the financial
3l ZEBERENLFELRGBHE statements. The fair value of such options, which has been recognized
WamRPHER  ERAFERELHES to the income statement over the vesting period, was determined as at
B BREEAFEZVBERENZEE the date of grant and the amount included in the financial statements
EBE L EENE I for the current year is included in the above directors’ emoluments
disclosures.
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(b)

BYFUTES

FA - XN TFBIIFRTERNHE
FWT
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 March 2008

9. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)
(a) Independent non-executive directors

The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during the
year were as follows:

TEE Group

(EBE¥For) (HK$'000) 2008 2007

PR BB ¢ S A Mr. Johnson Chin Kwang TAN 172 150

Anish LALVANIS 4 Mr. Anish LALVANI 184 150

PR B Mr. Bernard Charnwut CHAN 169 143
525 443

FA - WEEMME S TBLIF
HITER(ZZETLF  E\) o

There were no other emoluments payable to the independent non-
executive directors during the year (2007: Nil).

HITES (b) Executive directors
2008
30N
BER REX A
EURR E30) (B8 B Bike
Salaries,  HMTRA W& FEEX
allowances Performance Equity-settled Pension e ast
#¢  and benefits related  share option scheme Total
(EEFT) (HK$000) Fees in kind bonuses benefits contributions emoluments
BEEL Dr. Chen CHIANG - 4490 5974 79 - 10,543
BEhut Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG - 2,757 5,830 53 12 8,652
BETREE Mr. Chi Kin CHIANG - 2,019 2501 26 12 4,558
EUREE Mr. Stephen Hau Leung CHUNG - 1,704 642 2 12 2384
RBELE Mr. Sam Hon Wah NG - 1,200 500 22 12 1,734
SR 15M7 206 18 27871
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9. EEME (&) 9. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(b) BITEE(E) (b) Executive directors (continued)

2007
E0
BHR DR A
BNRIE E3: ] il 3e Bihe
Salaries, A g SR
allowances  Performance  Equity-settled Pension ezt
#£  and benefits related  share option scheme Total
(B¥FT) (HK$000) Fees in kind bonuses benefits  contributions  emoluments
EBERL Dr. Chen CHIANG - 4,490 6,614 83 - 11,187
BERxL Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG - 2,757 6,469 5% 12 9,204
BEREE Mr. Chi Kin CHIANG - 1997 2,751 8 12 4,788
EMREE Mr. Stephen Hau Leung CHUNG - 1,704 2,142 28 12 3886
REERE Mr. Sam Hon Wah NG - 1,200 401 5% 12 1,669
- 12,148 18377 251 48 30,824

FA - BEBTREBLTNE
e S K ABEEL 51400070
TETF ) o

FR AR ZREBETEEN =
ZE—FNA=FT—HEZZZE=
FZR+—ARLEZERERS
1,802,000k AR Rl E @K - 7
BRI IEREAMEILH - %F
BRENATEERBBBTRER
FHER  EATFEARTHE
BREEAFEZMBRENZESE
ERELNESHeMEE -

FA - AEETEGTEFHE A
SRV T INAR R B SAE R IAR
SR 2 B - SBRRER(E

A4 ANNUAL REPORT 2008
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During the year, Dr. Chen CHIANG and Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG
waived a portion of their emoluments amounting to a total of
HK$1,514,000 (2007: Nil).

During the year, three directors of the Company exercised share
options, which had been granted on 31 August 2001 and 11 March
2003 to acquire 1,802,000 ordinary shares of the Company,
details of which are set out in note 31 to the financial statements.
The fair value of such options, which has been recognized to
the income statement over the vesting period, was determined as at the
date of grant and the amount included in the financial statements
for the current year is included in the directors’ emoluments
disclosures.

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to the
directors as an inducement to join, or upon joining the Group, or
as compensation for loss of office.
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Notes to Financial Stéteﬁ‘lerits

31 March 2008

10. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the year included five (2007:
five) directors, details of whose emoluments are set out in note 9 to the

financial statements.

11. TAX

Hong Kong profits tax has not been provided as the Group did not

generate any assessable profits arising in Hong Kong for the year (2007:

Nil). Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere have been calculated at the

rates of tax prevailing in the countries/jurisdictions in which the Group

operates, based on existing legislation, interpretations and practices in

respect thereof.

rEE Group
CEMTFor) (HK$°000) 2008 2007
RIS Current:
REEHEZ N Charge for the year
S Hong Kong - _
HAth bR Elsewhere 38,991 37,303
BEFELRBH Overprovision in prior years (807) (1,056)
PRAE — /5329 Deferred — note 29 (20,055) (11,414)
REFFIBT N Tax charge for the year 18,129 24,833

9 7 SEHESR AT A W] CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED
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11.

TAX (continued)

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before tax
using the statutory rates, ranging from 15% to 33%, for the countries/
jurisdictions in which the Company and its subsidiaries are domiciled
to the tax expense at the effective tax rates is as follows:

T

TEE Group
GEMTFT) (HK$'000) 2008 2007
B 15 At A Profit before tax 338,974 337,124
BAEMETE 2 HIE Tax at the statutory tax rates 86,935 108,450
&R 17 et 77 e s Tax concessions/lower tax rates for

ZRBER, BRI E specific provinces and local authority (62,060) (77,569)
TR E) Y B R AT IR Effect on opening deferred tax

a2 of changes in rates (9,549) (6,579)
AR 2 2 Expenses not deductible for tax 10,071 9,804
BEHMNTRIE 2 WA Income not subject to tax (10,700) (9,181)
RMER 2 NEETIARE Tax losses for the year not recognized 6,088 3,747
B ABAT AR 18 Tax losses from previous periods utilized (1,849) (2,783)
iR E BRFE BN EATR IR Adjustments in respect of current tax of

AR previous periods (807) (1,056)
REFEHRBEZ L Tax charge for the year 18,129 24,833

AEBEETRHBEAELE ZHEB AR
RONEBEDLE  ZEWBARZAM
EEMNEEFEERLBATEME
B MR ERZ =FRIERR50%.2F
BIFT{SH
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Certain of the Group’s subsidiaries operating in the Mainland China are
wholly-foreign-owned enterprises and are exempted from the income
tax of the PRC for two years starting from the first profitable year of
operations, and are entitled to a 50% relief from the income tax of the
PRC for the following three years.
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11.
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TAX (continued)

The National People’s Congress approved the Corporate Income Tax
(“CIT") Law of the People’s Republic of China (the new “CIT Law”)
on 16 March 2007 and the State Council announced the Detail
Implementation Regulations (“DIR”) on 6 December 2007, which
was effective from 1 January 2008. According to the new CIT Law, the
income tax rates for both domestic and foreign investment enterprises
would be unified at 25% effective from 1 January 2008. However,
for enterprises which were established before the publication of the
new CIT Law and were entitled to preferential treatments of reduced
CIT tax rate granted by relevant tax authorities, the new CIT rate will
be gradually increased from the preferential rate to 25% within 5
years after the effective date of the new CIT Law on 1 January 2008.
Enterprises that are currently entitled to exemptions from or reductions
in the standard income tax rate for a fixed term may continue to enjoy
such treatment until the fixed term expires.

.PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE

COMPANY

The consolidated profit attributable to equity holders of the Company for
the year ended 31 March 2008 includes a profit of HK$235,742,000
(2007: HK$188,813,000) which has been dealt with in the financial
statements of the Company (note 32).
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13. R & 13. DIVIDENDS
CEMTFT) (HK$°000) 2008 2007
PRI RRE T T ZE A Additional final dividend
ZEAINRERRR B due to exercise of share options 189 445
hERR BT ER Interim dividend of HK$0.08
BH0.087T ( ZEZH5F ¢ (2007: HK$0.08) per ordinary share
7&5#0.087T ) 50,028 49,735
H IR T mAE £ Additional interim dividend
2 EBINR AR S due to exercise of share options 59 198
BEAHREGL AR Proposed final dividend of HK$0.174
BH0.17470 ( Z2Z£4F © (2007: HK$0.16) per ordinary share
B#0.167T ) 108,964 99,866
159,240 150,244
NEFER 2 AR B AL RRIRER The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the approval of the
RN T 2 R A F R HER T A Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting.
(S
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14. AR AIEREBEEAELERER 14. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY

BRERBF TIRBFARA R R
B ARG A S B 1|7 317,829,000
T(ZZ T £ F % #312,276,000
TI)RFREBETERR ZINET
¥ 81625,175,6770%( — T T + F :
622,518,17588) 5T EFR1S -

GREFRR TIREBEFARA RS
B AFEAE A S @)% 1| 317,829,000
TL(ZEZ+F : B#312,276,0005T)
Ko I F 15 $8628,602, 816/ ( — T F
+4F 1 627,573 4380% ) Ei@AL (ANt E

FREREFANMBFRNCEITE B
2 hNHEF 19 88625,175677% ( —BE
+ 4 : 622,518,175/% ) RREBEFAK
BTz BRED 2D T H R EmMET
{2 I 15 803,427,139 (=TT £
& 1 5,055,2630% ) LB ) FTEFTIS ©

HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the Group’s
profit attributable to equity holders of the Company for the year of
HK$317,829,000 (2007: HK$312,276,000) and on the weighted
average number of 625,175,677 (2007: 622,518,175) ordinary shares
in issue during the year.

The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based on the Group’s
profit attributable to equity holders of the Company for the year of
HK$317,829,000 (2007: HK$312,276,000) and on the weighted
average number of 628,602,816 (2007: 627,573,438) ordinary
shares, being the weighted average number of 625,175,677 (2007:
622,518,175) ordinary shares in issue during the year as used in the
basic earnings per share calculation and the weighted average number
of 3,427,139 (2007: 5,055,263) ordinary shares assumed to have
been issued at no consideration on the deemed exercise of all share
options outstanding during the year.
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 March 2008

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

31 March 2008

KAEERE Lt BE -
kEF R HEEE ~ R
HEgF REMBE
Freehold Plant,
land and machinery,
buildings, EEIRE furniture
rEE Group and leasehold Construction and other et
(EETFr) (HK$'000) buildings  in progress  equipment Total
R+ FMNA—H At 1 April 2007
%N Cost 547,045 8,379 701,552 1,256,976
ZErE Accumulated depreciation (138,982) - (467,822) (606,804)
IREFE Net carrying amount 408,063 8,379 233,730 650,172
RZZEZ+FMA—H At 1 April 2007, net of
Bk RINE accumulated depreciation 408,063 8,379 233,730 650,172
NE Additions 7,436 28,957 22,057 58,450
HE Disposals - - (71) (71)
Gl Write-off - - (58) (58)
LR Transfer - (94) 94 _
NEFTERE Depreciation provided
during the year (15,294) - (40,500) (55,794)
B 5 2 Exchange realignment 33,119 1,033 22,341 56,493
RZZETNE
=A=+—H" At 31 March 2008, net of
Bk EHINE accumulated depreciation 433,324 38,275 237,593 709,192
RZEBEENF=ZA=+—H At 31 March 2008
AR Cost 594,886 38,275 783,641 1,416,802
Z:tirE Accumulated depreciation (161,562) - (546,048) (707,610)
BREFE Net carrying amount 433,324 38,275 237,593 709,192
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Notes to Financial Stéteﬁ‘lerits

31 March 2008

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

31 March 2007

KAERE Ly BE

kEF R MR~ R

HERF REMBE

Freehold Plant,

land and machinery,

buildings, EEIR furniture
rEE Group and leasehold Construction and other st
(E¥Fr) (HK$'000) buildings  in progress  equipment Total

RZEERFNA—H At 1 April 2006

PR Cost 528,017 7,149 663,322 1,198,488
ZrE Accumulated depreciation (123,171) - (413,894) (537,065)
IREFE Net carrying amount 404,846 7,149 249,428 661,423

R-ZEERFOA—H
EHBRRETE

NE

HE

L2 3o

AEZFERE

PEE 3¢ 8%

At 1 April 2006, net of

accumulated depreciation 404,846 7,149 249,428 661,423
Additions 1,182 8,176 12,424 21,782
Disposals - - (340) (340)
Write-off - - (233) (233)
Transfer 3,979 (7,391) 3,412 -
Depreciation provided

during the year (13,784) - (42,965) (56,749)
Exchange realignment 11,840 445 12,004 24,289

R-ZZEZ+E=A=+—8H"

Bk R E

At 31 March 2007, net of
accumulated depreciation 408,063 8,379 233,730 650,172

R=BFLE=A=1—H

At 31 March 2007

R Cost 547,045 8,379 701,552 1,256,976
ZEHE Accumulated depreciation (138,982) - (467,822) (606,804)
BREFE Net carrying amount 408,063 8,379 233,730 650,172
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 March 2008

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

was held under medium term leases.

The Group’s construction in progress was situated outside Hong Kong and

The Group’s freehold land and buildings and leasehold buildings included

RiEF  REEERFZOMAT above are analyzed as follows:
rEE Group
GEMTT) (HK$'000) 2008 2007
s BMELET Leasehold buildings held under:
ERE 2 FHZY Medium term leases in Hong Kong 41,862 45,082
TEB AN [E 2 H B2 4) Medium term leases outside Hong Kong 293,701 271,565
335,563 316,647
ERBAINBIE 2 KA ZEHE Freehold land and buildings held
TH REF outside Hong Kong 97,761 91,416
433,324 408,063
104
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 March 2008

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

Company
(HK$'000)

B R E AR A
Furniture and
other equipment

—E2ENF=A=+—H

31 March 2008

R-ZEZLFIMA—A - At 1 April 2007,

Bk EFTITE net of accumulated depreciation 936
REFITERE Depreciation provided during the year (100)
RZEZENF=A=+—H" At 31 March 2008,

Bk EFTITE net of accumulated depreciation 836
R-EENF=A=+—H At 31 March 2008

PR AR Cost 11,541

E5HhE Accumulated depreciation (10,705)

AR A Net carrying amount 836
—EE+FE=R=+—H 31 March 2007
RZZEZRFNOMA—A - At 1 April 2006,

B REFHTE net of accumulated depreciation 1,065
REFITERE Depreciation provided during the year (129)

N—ER+F=A=+—H " At 31 March 2007,

Bk EFTITE net of accumulated depreciation 936
R-ETE+F=A=+—H At 31 March 2007

PR AR Cost 11,541

Z5HTE Accumulated depreciation (10,605)

AR A Net carrying amount 936
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 March 2008

16. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS

rEE Group
(BEFT) (HK$'000) 2008 2007
RUA—BREREE Carrying amount at 1 April 54,288 54,206
NE Additions 3,518 -
REFHER Recognized during the year (1,805) (1,338)
b 5 SR B Exchange realignment 2,757 1,420
R=A=+—HBHRAE Carrying amount at 31 March 58,758 54,288
EEBHBEEER S Current portion included in deposits,

TR RIE N A FE U R 5K prepayments and other receivables (1,878) (1,338)
JERZHAER (9 Non-current portion 56,880 52,950

AEEE Ll PR AN L HER

The Group’s prepaid land lease payments included above are analyzed

DT - as follows:
rEE Group
CE#EFT) (HK$'000) 2008 2007
FrisE MM B E Prepaid land lease payments held under:
BB ZRERY Medium term leases in Hong Kong 24,619 25,236
EEBLAIMEE Medium term leases outside
Z R HEIRRAY Hong Kong 34,139 29,052
58,758 54,288
17. 58 17. GOODWILL
AEE Group
CEEFT) (HK$'000) 2008 2007
[EES Goodwill 94,931 94,931
4E#t ANNUAL REPORT 2008 106



B %5 2R 3= MY =E

—ZEN\F=A=+—H

17.

18.

R
Notes to Financial Statements

31 March 2008

BEE) 17.GOODWILL (continued)

AR RE R

HERAHELECBEC AR TETH
BABETTRER - ZMBRRIZA]
WoleBREFEREEGHEETE
SEMANRSRERNARTFIMEE
BRER - WERBEHENIZRR
BREEHERERITEE - BHEHER
HERKR T BERASGBEFERNRR
REROES - B REFRRFA N
BEFR6% (TiA1) » ARBRIERINE
RAZAFTERER ©

Impairment testing of goodwill

Goodwill acquired through business combinations has been allocated
to certain subsidiaries for impairment testing. The recoverable amount
of the subsidiaries is determined based on a value in use calculation
using cash flow projections based on financial budgets covering a
five-year period. The key assumptions for the value in use calculation
include the expected growth rate and discount rate. The financial
budgets are prepared reflecting actual and prior year performance and
development expectations. The discount rate applied to the cash flow
projections is 6% which is before tax and reflects specific risks relating
to the relevant subsidiaries.

RHE AR 18.INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

PN Company

(E#For) (HK$'000) 2008 2007

JE TR - R AE Unlisted shares, at cost 172,370 172,370

FEUB B A RIBR R Due from subsidiaries 1,011,533 919,747

FETHI B A FIBRE X Due to subsidiaries (367,254) (373,277)
816,649 718,840

BPM B A B 2 R ERRR R A 1 N S ]
FEEFIGSR - HE T HIB AR 2Rk ER
BRJOIRIRITS M R ULERHE, o B
DA RFBENREENESERER
FE -

FENB AR ZFBERI40E1438 A
7 o

The balances with subsidiaries are unsecured and have no fixed terms
of repayment. The balances with certain subsidiaries bear interest at
prevailing market rates. The carrying amounts of the balances with
subsidiaries approximate to their fair values.

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are set out on pages 140 to
143.

]- O 7 SEHESE AT PR W] CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 March 2008

19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

TEE Group

(BMFoT) (HK$'000) 2008 2007

EIEEEFE Share of net assets 13,096 10,817

FEU S & N B AR R Due from associates 43 39

FETEEE N EIEREX Due to associates (10,745) (6,286)
2,394 4 570

HEE N R RSB AEER 28
R [ETE [EIE AR o BB A R) 2 BRAK
BRENREECRENEAFE -

PTG AN G2 B 2 Bt N RIS AR BT
BERABREREZRIEA -

BEARZFMARMT ¢

The balances with the associates are unsecured, interest-free and have
no fixed terms of repayment. The carrying amounts of the balances
with the associates approximate to their fair values.

All of the Group’s associates are corporate entities registered in the
PRC and operating in Mainland China.

Particulars of the associates are as follows:

TEBEEML

BRTRAEE EZEDL

BWER Percentage of
Nominal value of ownership interest FEEK
£ issued share/ attributable Principal
Name paid-up capital to the Group activities
3811 T & 5 1 R %711,520,000 25 BLERIHE
BRAF] US$1,520,000 REREEE W

Foshan Fu Xiong Foundry
Company, Limited

18 L1 T B [ A
BLERR A

Foshan Shunde Fu Xiong Machinery
Company, Limited

A4 ANNUAL REPORT 2008
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 March 2008

19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

Notes:
(1) The above companies are not audited by Ernst & Young Hong Kong or

other member firm of the Ernst & Young global network.

(2) The above companies use 31 March as their reporting date to conform with
their holding company’s reporting date.

The following table illustrates the summarized financial information of
the Group’s associates extracted from their management accounts:

CEBFT) (HK$'000) 2008 2007
AiE Assets 123,182 108,917
afE Liabilities (70,801) (65,650)
Wz Revenues 110,151 73,646
il Profit 4,518 8,636
AHHEERKRE 20. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE EQUITY INVESTMENTS

AEE Group

CEEFT) (HK$'000) 2008 2007
ELETRE - K AE Unlisted investments, at cost 170,539 170,539
VEAEEE L Provision for impairment (46,482) (46,482)
4t Total 124,057 124,057

SEETA L SRR R A AR AR A
BRI R R AR AR — A BA

=N
Ejo

RZEBEENF=ZA=+—8 AR —
FEMESKEZAEBATFEZGE
RERA BIEARBESZRARAE
A EERNFE S MEIELTRE
HIRERAAYE - HIEREE A
124,057,000t — T T+ F: B
124,057,0007T) ©

The unlisted available-for-sale equity investments represent an
investment in a Taiwanese company and an indirect interest in a joint
venture company in Mainland China.

As at 31 March 2008, an unlisted equity investment with a carrying
amount of HK$124,057,000 (2007: HK$124,057,000) was stated
at cost because the range of reasonable fair value estimates is so
significant that the directors are of the opinion that its fair value cannot
be measured reliably.
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21. BEFHRE

Notes to Financial Statements

31 March 2008

21.HELD-TO-MATURITY INVESTMENTS

AEEH Group
CBEMTT) (HK$'000) 2008 2007
FEHERE: Held-to-maturity investments:
JELETIHFERH Unlisted held-to-maturity

EERE - BRAE commercial papers, at cost 7,800 7,800
B B Provision for impairment (7,800) (7,800)

22.7E 22.INVENTORIES
AEE Group
CEMTFor) (HK$'000) 2008 2007
R Raw materials 317,376 246,817
P Work in progress 269,051 245199
BURN G Finished goods 122,851 86,073
709,278 578,089

44 ANNUAL REPORT 2008
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23. BB Z REBRN 23.TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

AEH Group

(GE¥For) (HK$'000) 2008 2007
JEWE 5 M EB IR Trade and bills receivables 950,398 740,817
TR Impairment (76,074) (65,177)

874,324 675,640

EFPZBSER—RABRERS ~ iRTT
SEMEANE - AEBREERNEP
ZEFRENREERMEERE - FOE
ERRNTR  RETERERSNE
ReLsrk 2 BF @ BIEREEEH - A&
P SR B BB G TR SRR 15 5 1R N R LA B
R BREERBREERE - BKES
REBERRZEAEOESNERF
B-

RN EAMBR R A KB EKE S K
SRR REDBEFATHEK - 808
BEANEHTEERR - BRESHRE
BARFILTHIAES o

Trading terms with customers are either cash on delivery, bank bills
or on credit. Customers are granted credit at the discretion of the
Group, subject to their respective business strength and creditability.
The average credit period is 90 days and extension of credit period is
made for customers with good trading and repayment records. The
Group adopts strict control policies over credit terms and receivables
that serve to minimize credit risk. The carrying amounts of the trade
and bills receivables approximate to their fair values.

In view of the aforementioned and the fact that the Group’s trade and
bills receivables relate to a large number of diversified customers, there
is no significant concentration of credit risk. Trade and bills receivables
are non-interest-bearing.

]- ]- ]- SEHESR AT A W] CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED
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23.EREZREBIRR(Z) 23.TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued)
BUWE S REERFRERESB W The movements in provision for impairment of trade and bills
™ receivables are as follows:
KEH Group
CBEETT) (HK$'000) 2008 2007
M A—H At 1 April 65,177 54,725
B s R AER A RE Provision for impairment losses charged

EEEE EE to the income statement, net 14,342 11,105

ST T REUR B B & BB Amount written off as uncollectible (7,777) (3,947)
PE W a2 Exchange realignment 4,332 3,294
W=A=+—H At 31 March 76,074 65,177
LN E 5 REBRERER BE Included in the above provision for impairment of trade and bills
BEEERIRERENRIE 5 RS receivables is a provision for individually impaired trade receivables
61,074,0007T (2007 : /& #64,461,000 of HK$61,074,000 (2007: HK$64,461,000) with a carrying amount of
JT) - HEREE &5 #%64,578,0007T HK$64,578,000 (2007: HK$74,105,000).

(2007 : ##74,105,0007T) °

WIR R B RENERE 5 REERRER The aged analysis of the trade and bills receivables that are not

HIERER DT EA R considered to be impaired is as follows:

AEE Group

CBEMTT) (HK$'000) 2008 2007

REIE(I AR 8 B R (E) Current (neither past due nor impaired) 546,023 547,809

UL LR AR N Less than 90 days past due 176,622 93,341

BAENt—Z2—BNTX 91 to 180 days past due 107,104 19,316

mAfEB—aA\+X Over 180 days past due 44,575 15,174
874,324 675,640

44 ANNUAL REPORT 2008 ]. ]. 2
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 March 2008

23.TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued)

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to customers
for whom there was no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a number of
independent customers that have a good track record with the Group.
Based on past experience, the directors of the Company are of the
opinion that no provision for impairment is necessary in respect of
these balances as there has not been a significant change in credit
quality and the balances are still considered fully recoverable.

24. DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

AEH ¥ N
Group Company
CEBFIT) (HK$°000) 2008 2007 2008 2007
EEDSSENE S Deposits and prepayments 34,671 17,112 420 420
FERT T E R Prepaid land lease payments,
ESEERT) current portion 1,878 1,338 - -
E b EUER K Other receivables 24,951 31,388 495 667
61,500 49,838 915 1,087

ZEEEMEARIRE - BEHTHE
BEEY MBS B
BRAK o AR & - TARNFUR R E MR
BRRH TR EERAENEENERF
B~

None of these assets is either past due or impaired. The financial assets
included in these balances relate to receivables for which there was no
recent history of default. The carrying amounts of the financial assets
included in deposits, prepayments and other receivables approximate
to their fair values.
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—2P\F=A=+-H 31 March 2008
25. RERWITHETF 25.CASH AND BANK BALANCES
TEE AATH
Group Company
CBEMTT) (HK$'000) 2008 2007 2008 2007
W& RIRTTHETF Cash and bank balances 295,777 335,924 4,490 16,568
AF SR EE B R AR E Bank deposits with original
TR=MEA maturity of less than three
2 TEHTER months when acquired 34,021 27,689 - -
HeMReEEY Cash and cash equivalents 329,798 363,613 4,490 16,568
TR REBE SR HR M B Bank deposits with original
Bd=1EA maturity of more than three
2T (K1) months when acquired
(Note 1) 31,946 31,108 - -
361,744 394,721 4,490 16,568
WetEl - ZEGRIEETRPERELE Note 1: The balance included pledged bank deposits of certain subsidiaries
BB A R FT %A 78 31,946,000 operating in the Mainland China of HK$31,946,000 (2007:
(ZZZ 4 : #%31,108,0007T) HK$31,108,000) for securing certain loans granted by certain financial
EIRRITFR - AEERP BARE institutions in the Mainland China to certain third parties.
ETHBEBEGETETE=ENE
e
We2 - RITTFERARITERFERZEF Note 2: Cash at bank earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
EHEEAE - RIAEERESNFE deposits rates. Short term time deposits are made for varying periods
Ko MEMRA—AE=BATEDN of between one day and three months depending on the immediate
EHITE AT R WA A TE HAfE X cash requirements of the Group, and earn interest at the respective
BERENFE - BERBESEEY short term time deposit rates. The carrying amounts of the cash and
LR RITE R REELEER cash equivalents and the pledged deposits approximate to their fair
HATE- values.

44 ANNUAL REPORT 2008 ]. ]. 4
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26. ENEZREBRM 26. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES
REEAZENE S RERRKZRR An ageing analysis of the trade and bills payables as at the balance
DT sheet date is as follows:
AEE Group
(BEMFT) (HK$'000) 2008 2007
REIER Current 321,172 244,629
—ZE=ht+XK 1 to 90 days 69,035 42,807
ht—RE—BN\F+X 91 to 180 days 6,341 3,704
BA-—aNA+X Over 180 days 13,825 9,357

410,373 300,497

FER B 5 R IR AR S R —#% The trade and bills payable are non-interest-bearing and are normally
RATENTRAZT - BRBESRE settled at terms ranging from 60 to 90 days. The carrying amounts of
BRI EABEORENERATE - the trade and bills payables approximate to their fair values.

]. ]. 5 SEHESR AT A W] CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED
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27. HttE IR R BT EE

Notes to Financial Statements

31 March 2008

27.0THER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

AEH ¥ N
Group Company
CEBFT) (HK$'000) 2008 2007 2008 2007
BUEET & Deposits received 70,279 49,135 36 13
EETBENMEMERE  Accruals and other liabilities 178,627 166,110 19,104 22,873
248,906 215,245 19,140 22,886

AR RS R R ESEA
TR R RARERHATE -

The financial liabilities included in other payables and accruals are

non-interest-bearing and approximate to their fair values.

28. BITER » H|IEKH 28. BANK LOANS, UNSECURED
BEFRI=E
Effective
ALEH Group interest rate Bt
CE¥FT) (HK$'000) (%) Maturity 2008 2007
IRITEREE Bank loans repayable
—FR within one year 3.1(2007: 2.4) 2008 27,814 33,054

REEZ EBEMBITERNAREELNHR
EFRERQHE - AEBZEBERRTE

PNES R RS P

44 ANNUAL REPORT 2008

The carryingamounts of the Group’s unsecured bank loans approximate

to their fair values. The Group’s unsecured bank loans are at floating

rates.
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Notes to Financial Statements

29. DEFERRED TAX

SU

FNREHIEBEREEZESHNT ¢ The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during the year
are as follows:
EEBIEEE Deferred tax liabilities
HERSERR
HERE
Depreciation
allowance in
excess of MBH
REE Group related &  HIEEE Withholding et
(B Fir) (HK$'000) depreciation Provisions  Tax losses tax Total
RZETRFNA—H At 1 April 2006 2,545 (1,255) - 13,091 14,381
REFRUZERG, Deferred tax charged/(credited)
(T A) ZERERITE to the income statement
SFE(HE1) during the year, net (note 11) 6 (545) (729) 1,112 (156)
BB AR Withholding tax paid on
F BRI 2 AT repatriation of earnings
from overseas subsidiaries - - - (3,369) (3,369)
P& 5 R Exchange realignment - 43 - (188) (145)
RZTTLF=A=+—H  At31 March 2007 and
k=ZZFL+FMA—H 1 April 2007 2,551 (1,757) (729) 10,646 10,711
REFR I RIR, Deferred tax charged/(credited)
(FTA) BRI to the income statement
SEE (ML) during the year, net (note 11) (137) (808) (115) 10,407 9,347
BB AR Withholding tax paid on
F BRI 2 AT repatriation of earnings
from overseas subsidiaries - - - (4,647) (4,647)
[E i 28 Exchange realignment - (332) - 1,068 736
RZZEENF=ZA=+—H  Gross deferred tax liabilities
Zﬁﬁw NMrREERER recognized in the
ERTIRRERE consolidated balance sheet
at 31 March 2008 2,414 (2,897) (844) 17,474 16,147
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 March 2008

29. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

BEREEE Deferred tax assets
HERSERR
HEE
Depreciation
allowance in
excess of
rEE Group related B BEE met
(BE%For) (HK$000) depreciation Provisions Tax losses Total
—EERFENA—H At 1 April 2006 (517) 24,735 - 24,218
AEERRERITA Deferred tax credited
ZIRIETIEFE - to the income statement
BREAEERENE during the year, net, including
%= anlEilliiwyox-c] a tax credit of HK$8,960,000
75138,960,0007T due to the effect of a change in
(Bfa£11) the effective tax rates (nofe 11) 229 10,907 122 11,258
BEE 5, S Exchange realignment - 1,095 - 1,095
RZZZ+F=A=+—H  At31 March 2007 and
k=ZFET+FMA—H 1 April 2007 (288) 36,737 122 36,571
AEERRERETA Deferred tax credited
ZIRIERIEFE - to the income statement
BREAEERENE during the year, net, including
FEZ IR a tax credit of HK$10,226,000
751#10,226,0007T due to the effect of a change in
(Bfa£11) the effective tax rates (nofe 11) 164 25,001 4,237 29,402
BEE 5, S Exchange realignment - 3,555 12 3,567
RZZZENF=A=+—H  Gross deferred tax assets
RN EERER recognized in the
ERERIBEELE consolidated balance sheet
at 31 March 2008 (124) 65,293 4371 69,540
118
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29.IEFERIIE (&) 29. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

AAEBEBRNEBNREEREREE
217,737,000t( ZE T+ F: B
182,306,0007T ) KR 7 o B K B 69 %
B #41,799,0007T( —Z 2T+ F : B
54,536,0007T ) + AI IR IHEXS LB 1R
ZABHRZERBEN - BR_FT
NE=ZA=1T—RZARZERTOEF
R A RER RN E BN ARB A K
TE 518 75%5,113,0007T ( Z 2+ 4 -
78 #54,164,0007T ) FUOR T B Bl A FEHY
117,484,000t ( — T+ F : B
488,0007T) 50 - M AR E #X 1S B R
—ERERR - YRR R RS A A R
B ER - BB % FEIREREL
WMIBEE - EAERIEERAEES -
BIEEEE24,315000L( ZFEE L F -
78 #554,048,0007T ) #Y 5 7% 5 1R K 1 T
FzREE - HtEian AERHR

%o

RZZEZNF=A=+—H  ptr&E
M AR MEE R B2 RN E RN E
R 2 R RIR - WEARER BN
HAGB(ZZTLF 8-

AABAEBRIKE ZBE - SWEHA
ERFAERIER -

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of HK$217,737,000
(2007: HK$182,306,000) and in the Mainland China of HK$4 1,799,000
(2007: HK$54,536,000) that are available for offsetting against future
taxable profits of the companies in which the losses arose. Except for tax
losses arising in Hong Kong of HK$5,113,000 (2007: HK$4,164,000)
and in the Mainland China of HK$17,484,000 (2007: HK$488,000) as
at 31 March 2008 to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the unused tax losses can be
utilized, deferred tax assets have not been recognized in respect of
these losses as they have arisen in those companies that have been
loss-making for some time and it is not considered probable that taxable
profits will be available against which the tax losses can be utilized.
Included in unrecognized tax losses are losses of HK$24,315,000
(2007: HK$54,048,000) that will expire within 5 years. Other losses
can be carried forward indefinitely.

As at 31 March 2008, there was no unrecognized deferred tax liability
(2007: Nil) for taxes that would be payable on the unremitted earnings
of the Group’s subsidiaries and associates should such amounts be
remitted.

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the payment of
dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

]- ]- 9 SEHESE AT PR W] CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED
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30. R4 30. SHARE CAPITAL
(BIEFor) (HK$°000) 2008 2007
JEIE Authorized:
1,000,000,0000% & 378 A% 1,000,000,000 ordinary shares
FIE0.107T of HK$0.10 each 100,000 100,000
BEITREEAT Issued and fully paid:
626,227 ,600% (2007 : 626,227,600 (2007:
624,163,600/% ) i8I 624,163,600) ordinary shares
FAB®0.107T of HK$0.10 each 62,623 62,416

F I BB R 800,000 K 1,264,000 %
BREZABREASEBEREE
1.0507T K /& #1.9887T 2 171 B #&
TE(HFE3L) - Bt RBAKED
78 #3,353,0007T( KAt AT H)

HeTHREAESKCIOT 2 E@RK HK$3,353,000 in aggregate.

2,064,000 °

A4 ANNUAL REPORT 2008
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During the year, the subscription rights attaching to 800,000 and
1,264,000 share options were exercised at the exercise prices of
HK$1.050 and HK$1.988 per ordinary share respectively (note 31),
resulting in the issue of 2,064,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each
for a total cash consideration, before issue expenses, of approximately
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31 March 2008

30. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Details of the movements in the Company’s issued ordinary share
capital are as follows:

28T 28T iav)

ZEREAE IR HRER

Number of Issued Share
ordinary shares share premium st
in issue capital account Total

BT BETT  BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

R-ZEFMA—H At 1 April 2006 618,619,600 61,862 490,186 552,048
TEITIE 2 BER Share options exercised 5,544,000 554 8,122 8,676
RIZZ+F At 31 March 2007 and

—A=+t—8k 1 April 2007

—EELFIUA—H 624,163,600 62,416 498,308 560,724
TETTIE 2 B i Share options exercised 2,064,000 207 3,146 3,353
RZZTNF At 31 March 2008

=B=+—H 626,227,600 62,623 501,454 564,077
R 31. SHARE OPTIONS

REARBN_ZFTZT_F/\A=-1+=H
BITZBEREFAE LBBZ TRRE
o ARAR—ANAARENA=THE
Mz BT 8I(119965F 5T 8 ) B %
A% L1 0 B B A0 T B AR 5T 81 ([ 200248
FtE)) e MI996FAH B ILTR - 5
IRIE1996F 5 8 B L (F fa) i A #E
HE19964F 71 8l 2 IR E A 7 D &
M R IE196FFH AT E R Z
2 AR EE AR A B R D P R B AR SR AT
1 o R IZ19964F &t & & 20024 71 8%
th 2 BB TG TR A AMEUR B3k
REERAE ERRZ R -

Pursuantto an ordinary resolution passed at the annual general meeting
of the Company held on 23 August 2002, the share option scheme
adopted by the Company on 30 August 1996 (the “1996 Scheme”)
was terminated and a new share option scheme (the “2002 Scheme”)
was adopted. Upon termination of the 1996 Scheme, no further
share options can be granted thereunder but in all other respects, the
provisions of the 1996 Scheme remained in force and all share options
granted prior to such termination continued to be valid and exercisable
in accordance therewith. Share options under the 1996 Scheme and
the 2002 Scheme do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to
vote at shareholders’ meetings.

1 2 1 SEHESE AT PR W] CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED
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31.lBRRAE(E)
2002F 5T & 2 FHIBHIE T ¢
(a B®

HEBMZ2EARKEEIELRK
1 AT 1E B AT T A 2280 K e -

(b) BEA

() ZREEEAIK B sk AR AR

RBIE2002FFHEI 2 E &)
sl R IZ AR AR R AR 6] 2 (A A A
Z

@ EAER(THENTTH
FETT - BIEEMBILIE
HITEFR) MEB (T2
2REGEE) - 2k

(b) EEEFEZEMA

(i) FAANEEEARE S EA R
Pl st 3R B 428 S BSR4 Il 2 4E
A RBIEITZERNESRE
AR

(i) 7 85 L (P B o FE AT AR
R IR A
Az

() EAIRBRAIERH
AHRERTEA  ABR

(b) {EAAT A = 3k 1 52 2 4 AT
T BRIEMRMIE
HAE(THR - EEBERK
Hib SRR EER R 2R
%
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31. SHARE OPTIONS (continued)
The particulars of the 2002 Scheme are as follows:
(a) Purpose

As rewards or incentives for the contribution or potential contribution
to the Group from the eligible participants.

(b) Participants

(i) (a) any director (whether executive or non-executive,
including any independent non-executive director) and
employee (whether full time or part time) of, or

(b) any individual for the time being seconded to work for,

any member of the Group or any controlling shareholder (as
defined under the 2002 Scheme) or any company controlled
by a controlling shareholder;

(ii) anyholder of any securities issued by any member of the Group
or any controlling shareholder or any company controlled by a
controlling shareholder; and

(iii) (a) any business or joint venture partner, franchisee,
contractor or distributor of,

(b) any person or entity that provides research, development
or other technological support or any advisory,
consultancy, professional or other services in respect of
business operations to,

(c) any supplier of goods or services to, or

122
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3l.IBREE)

(b)

(c)

(d)

BEA(E)

(© &R BRI 2 1
R

I

(d) EREIRGEMER -

F2002F 5 EIME - 2HABR
A — (I 32 (L R PA_E AR A2
B2 FRE I Z AR A F] ©

ATFRTEBRRHE LR

RAFR A - &%3%50,162,760
PoE AR (RHEER AR FE T
IR AR7.99% ) Al FEEAT -

BUSEATERES LR

B AR 1%20024F 51 &1 2 1R R S 1T HE
I BRU2BEAEEN+ @A
NEERHBEREZH L) » 1R
1R20024F 5t & M AN R B E R E A
B EMER ZBRE(RE
Bt - BITERRARITE 2B
)T ATTRE - FRBITRKHTZ
Bty LR SEBIRNARF D
BATROR -

I

Notes to Financial Statements

31 March 2008

31. SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

123

Participants (continued)

(d) any customer of goods or services of,

any member of the Group or any controlling shareholder or a
company controlled by a controlling shareholder.

For the purposes of the 2002 Scheme, the participants shall
include any company controlled by one or more persons belonging
to any of the above classes of participants.

Maximum number of ordinary shares available for issue

A total of 50,162,760 ordinary shares is available for issue which
represents approximately 7.99% of the issued share capital of the
Company as at the date of this annual report.

Maximum entitlement of each participant

The maximum number of ordinary shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of share options granted under the 2002 Scheme
and any other share option schemes of the Company to any
participant (including cancelled, exercised and outstanding share
options), in any 12-month period up to the date of grant shall
not exceed 1% of the ordinary shares in issue unless otherwise
approved in accordance with the terms of the 2002 Scheme.

SEHESE AT PR W] CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED
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3l.IBREE)

(e)

®

(g

(h)

TREBREIETER IR

AR H A 2 BEET T F A
RAEERNEHRATIEENERE
HAR] -

BRERTERLABRERENR
(mA\)

REHBRER - XATEZERHK
EEBBRERAIITENLEREZ
MR (IE) -

BEABREZSNSERIROAR

ERHBREZOZ BRE(BHEZ
BIOt+TRERAERZABZE
# e NEXBHBRERZNR - &
RH&#1.007T °

BRETEEEE2EE

TR RS 78 T 2 1 2 TR AR D
TEEBEANRRESTRIRT - H
TEERZEI R TIIREE

() BEEBARZMBERAR(H
RDRELBERBELZE
B RER Al 2 T BT E
(BERABERRZH):

(i) BERPrMEZIFH BRI R E
BRMRZAEHZEERE
FRAat 2 BRI T E
54

(i) @Az EE -
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31. SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

(e)

®

(g

(h)

124

Period within which the ordinary shares must be taken up
under a share option

Within ten years from the date of grant of the share option or such
shorter period as the board of directors of the Company determines
at the time of grant.

Minimum period, if any, for which a share option must be held
before it can be exercised

At the time of granting a share option, the board of directors of the
Company will determine the minimum period(s), if any, for which
a share option must be held before it can be exercised.

Amount payable upon acceptance of a share option and the
period within which the payment must be made

An offer for the grant of a share option must be accepted within
forty-five days inclusive of the day on which the offer was made.
The amount payable on acceptance of the offer for an option is
HK$1.00.

Basis of determining the exercise price of the share options

The exercise price per share payable on the exercise of a share
option shall be determined by the board of directors of the
Company and shall be no less than the highest of:

(i) the closing price of the ordinary shares as stated in the daily
quotation sheet issued by The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on the date of offer of grant,
which must be a business day;

(ii) the average closing price of the ordinary shares as stated in
the daily quotation sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for
the five business days immediately preceding the date of offer
of grant; and

(iii) the nominal value of an ordinary share.
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31. SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

(i) Remaining life of the 2002 Scheme

S5U

The 2002 Scheme has a life of ten years and will expire on 23
August 2012 unless otherwise terminated in accordance with the
terms of the 2002 Scheme.

The following share options were outstanding under the 2002 Scheme

and 1996 Scheme during the year:

gk
e
SRAZHERER Exercise
Name or category of BREXE RhBH fTEEmR price
participants Number of share options Date of grant* Exercise period per share**
RIETLE  ERRE EREAR ERAR RIBEAE
mA—H Granted Exercised Fofeited ZA=1-H
At 1 Apri during during during At 31 March
2007 the year the year the year 2008
(R/B/%) (R/R/%) V-7
(DIMFY) (DIMIY) HK$
EZHIERR
Directors or substantial
shareholders
BE
Chen CHIANG 1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000 11/3/2003  11/3/2008 - 10/3/2013 1988
EER
Lai Yuen CHIANG 668,000 - - - 668,000 11/32003  11/3/2008 - 10/3/2013 1.988
LR 400,000 - (400,000) - - 31/8/2001  31/8/2006 - 28/2/2009 1.050
Chi Kin CHIANG 334,000 - (334,000) - - 11/3/2003  11/3/2006 - 10/3/2013 1.988
334,000 - - - 334,000 11/32003  11/3/2008 - 10/3/2013 1.988
1,068,000 - (734,000) - 334,000
125
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3l.IBREE) 31. SHARE OPTIONS (continued)
Bk
frieE
SEAZHEERER Exercise
Name or category of BREZE HHAH TiEamR price
participants Number of share options Date of grant* Exercise period per share**
RIEZLE ERRE FAEAR FAERR RZBENE
mA-A Granted Exercised Forfeied  =A=1—H
At 1 April during during during  At31 March
2007 the year the year the year 2008
(8/B/%) (8B/B/%) BT
(DIMPY) (DIMFY) HK$
ENR 400,000 - (400,000) - - 3182001 31/8/2006 - 28/2/2009 1.050
Stephen Hau Leung 332,000 - - - 332,000 11/3/2003  11/3/2004 - 10/3/2013 1.983
CHUNG 334,000 - (334,000) - - 11/3/2003  11/3/2006 - 10/3/2013 1.983
334,000 - - - 334,000 11/3/2003  11/3/2008 - 10/3/2013 1.983
1,400,000 - (734,000) - 666,000
REE 334,000 - (334,000) - - 11/3/2003  11/3/2007 - 10/3/2013 1.983
Sam Hon Wah NG 334,000 - - - 334,000 11/3/2003  11/3/2009 - 10/3/2013 1.983
668,000 - (334,000) - 334,000
BEREARAA
Chen Hsong Investments
Limited 600,000 - - - 600,000 1132003 11/3/2008 - 10/3/2013 1.983
13 Subtotal 5,404,000 - (1,802,000) - 3,602,000
&8 (BEEH)
Employees (other than directors)
A 10,000 - - - 10,000 11/3/2003  11/3/2004 - 10/3/2013 1.983
In aggregate 38,000 - (14,000) - 24,000 11/3/2003  11/3/2006 - 10/3/2013 1.983
100,000 - (100,000) - - 1132003 11/3/2007 - 10/3/2013 1.983
726,000 - (148,000) - 578,000 11/3/2003  11/3/2008 - 10/3/2013 1.983
110,000 - - - 110,000 1132003 11/3/2009 - 10/3/2013 1.983
/Nt Subtotal 984,000 - (262,000) - 722,000
£ Total 6,388,000 - (2,064,000) - 4,324,000
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 March 2008

31.SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

*  The vesting period of the share options is from the date of grant until
the commencement of the exercise period.

** The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment in
the case of rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes in the
Company’s share capital.

Notes:

(1) The closing prices of the shares on 31 August 2001 and 11 March
2003 are HK$1.30 and HK$1.98 per share, respectively.

(2) The weighted average closing prices of the shares in which the
share options were exercised by the participants of the share option
schemes are as follows:

InEFHWTHE
Weighted average closing prices

EETERAI—X WTER

Immediately before At the date

SHEAZEESRER Name or category of participants the date of exercise of exercise
JBEE B

HK$ HK$

R Chi Kin CHIANG 5.38 5.38
EBRER Stephen Hau Leung CHUNG 4.80 4.75
REHE Sam Hon Wah NG 6.60 6.70
B8 (BrREZHN) Employees (other than directors) 5.01 497
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B %5 2R R MY =E

—ZTN\F=R=+—H

3l.IBREE)

)

(4)

R ¥ 20024F 51 81 & 17 % H 8 U2
ZREREHLOOT -

4R 87 7 % 2% B AE30PT 8
2,064,000/ 5 A3 18 17 {5 B {6 2%
72,064,0000% & R H {8 7% #0.10
TUAR R B E B M ARG AETT
2 H AT AR 7R 207,0007T &
17 V4 8 4978 % 3,146,0007T °

RZBEENF=A=+—H" K
A AR E1996F 5T & - WE( =
T 4F 1 800,0000% ) B8 B AE i
RITE - MR ?F2002¢ R
RIH4,324,0000( — T T+ F -
5,588,0000% ) & A% # \rc'-"J RITIE ©
WA R ATE 2 BE AR M 2 BUE T
fF - RARNRIRE 2 EREEE -
% & 21758 50, 324,0000% & A%
BEAR010T 2 Rk RIERE
A o] 48 B AR 1) 3547 32 RT3 A0
A 49375 #5432,000 7T B B A7 i (B
#)75%58,164,0007T ©
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31. SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

128

3

4)

(%)

The share options granted under the 2002 Scheme are for a
consideration of HK$1.00 per grant.

The 2,064,000 share options exercised during the year resulted
in the issue of 2,064,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the
Company and new share capital of HK$207,000 and share premium
of approximately HK$3,146,000 (before issue expenses), as detailed
in note 30 to the financial statements.

As at 31 March 2008, the Company had no (2007: 800,000) share
options outstanding under the 1996 Scheme and had 4,324,000
(2007: 5,588,000) share options outstanding under the 2002
Scheme. The exercise in full of the share options outstanding would,
under the present capital structure of the Company, result in the
issue of 4,324,000 additional ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the
Company, and additional share capital of approximately HK$432,000
and share premium of approximately HK$8,164,000 (before issue
expenses).
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32. #& 32.RESERVES

REE

A SR B AN [ B 1 4 Y B T L
(LRGBS BB MR 25 -

RERERRE  H2EWENARA
Al R BB D A R A B8 —#8
MR ENERE — Tk 2 BN
B o EERENEEEDZABER
50% s - BRAHKFBREFTER - Mz &
AEEIAIBER AR EEER - R=F
TENF=A=+—H  ZEXREBERE
#£37,894,000L ( ZEZ £ F : B
36,971,0007T ) ©

REFEHINEBELFE AN - AR
BIRA R B KR 2 35 THY 8 A BB B8
0B 18 5 ) 20K E 4 (UL Rt PR il 2
Rz BEEZAREBRERREE
EHFEMEARS0% °

Group

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements therein for
the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity.

In accordance with the Company Law of Taiwan, Asian Plastic
Machinery Company, Limited and Chen Hsong Machinery Taiwan
Company, Limited are required to transfer a portion of their profits after
tax to a capital reserve, which is non-distributable. When the capital
reserve has accumulated to 50% of the capital, up to 50% of the capital
reserve may be capitalized. The capital reserve may be utilized at any
time to offset any deficit. As at 31 March 2008, such capital reserve
amounted to HK$37,894,000 (2007: HK$36,971,000).

In accordance with the Law of the PRC on Sole Foreign Investment
Enterprises, certain of the Company’s Mainland China subsidiaries are
required to transfer a portion of their profit after tax to the statutory
reserve fund, which are restricted to use, until the accumulated total
reaches 50% of their registered capital.

]- 2 9 SEHESE AT PR W] CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED
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32. RESERVES (continued)

BB  EXEE
RER s
Share Capital EXfEE HKREEF

AAF Company premium redemption Capital  Retained st
(CERTFT) (HK$'000) account reserve reserve profits Total
RZEEFHA—H At 1 April 2006 490,186 295 2,354 105,261 598,096
REZHF Profit for the year - - - 188813 188813
BITHR (H75£30) Issue of new shares (note 30) 8,122 - - - 8,122
PARRAE =2 1< Y Equity-settled share option

B L arrangements - - 269 - 269
BE_TTRF Final dividend for

“A=t+—HIEFE the year ended

ZARHRRE 31 March 2006 - - - (93,238) (93,238)
mHIRE (MFF13) Interim dividend (note 13) - - - (49,933) (49,933
RZZZHF=A=+—H  At31 March 2007

k=ZFET+FMA—H and 1 April 2007 498,308 295 2,623 150,903 652,129
ANEE R F Profit for the year - - - 235742 235,742
BITER (H75£30) Issue of new shares (note 30) 3,146 - - - 3,146
PARSAE S 1+ A Equity-settled share option

BAEL arrangements - - 252 - 252
HEZTTLHF Final dividend for

“A=t+—BIFE the year ended

ZARHRES (MiF13) 31 March 2007 (note 13) - - - (100,055) (100,055)
REIRS (:t13) Interim dividend (note 13) - - - (50,087)  (50,087)
RZZT)N\F

=A=+—H At 31 March 2008 501,454 295 2,875 236,503 741,127
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XREE 33.CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
REER  LERIERRER Z A As at the balance sheet date, contingent liabilities not provided for in
=C=vUINE the financial statements were as follows:
rEE RAF
Group Company
(EB¥Fr) (HK$'000) 2008 2007 2008 2007
RETETE=EEEM Guarantees given to financial
RIS HRE institutions in connection with
BER - AR facilities granted to certain
third parties, at the maximum 91,133 96,624 - -
ETHBAREEM  Guarantees given to banks in
RELRITOER connection with facilities
granted to subsidiaries - - 786,664 851,365
91,133 96,624 786,664 851,365

R-ZENF=ZA=1+—8  ARQAz
BT BRREEMIREARITAER
B A = B8 4 /75 #30,014,0007T
( —ZZT+4F : #B#44,011,0000T ) °

i

RZZBENF=ZA=1+—RH &x&E
RN PEAREEETEZEY
BHERBEZEREREAHRNER
22,187,0007c(ZTZFLF : ) °

RZEENF=ZA=+—H ' ~&EEH
PRI KPEEE Y - B Ra&E -

EENBRBHE 2 ETRESE RN AES
#26,531,000c (ZEZ L& : B
1,111,0007T ) °

34.

131

As at 31 March 2008, the guarantees given by the Company to banks
in connection with facilities granted to subsidiaries were utilized to the
extent of approximately HK$30,014,000 (2007: HK$44,011,000).

COMMITMENTS

As at 31 March 2008, the Group had capital commitments, which
was contracted but not provided for, in respect of the construction of
industrial buildings in the Mainland China amounting to approximately
HK$22,187,000 (2007: Nil).

As at 31 March 2008, the Group had capital commitments, which
were contracted but not provided for, in respect of the purchase of
property, plant and equipment in the Mainland China amounting to
approximately HK$26,531,000 (2007: HK$1,111,000).
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35.

RZZEZNF=A=+—RH xEER
TREAELREEZZEMBARBENE
BRERETRHEAENZEHNB A
Al DEOERBRZ BAFES KL
REH120,0007T ( Z T LF B
46,207,0007T ) ©

RZZEENE=A=+—H  AQTE
ERNFEE(ZZFZLF8E) o

BEALRS

FA - BRAMIRE E AT PR
RN ARBEAATHREATR
5

(a) ZREEEABHEES2,459,0007T ( — &
T4 ¢ B41,375,0007T ) [A—
B X B LATE ST (B R TR A 2 4B
HERBREREBE R R o

BN AEEBR—BEQR] B
EEAMMORYDBRAR ( [E
8] ) LAEEB 21,238,000
(ZZZ 4 B¥4,809,0007T)
BERME - TR KR ZIAR
SEHEBRERS o

EBERARAN=ZNUEETEES
T BERATNEBEREL 2
BA ULERGEAREEEZ S
FRE N B R B2 B R IEEHE

o
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1
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 March 2008

34. COMMITMENTS (continued)

35.

As at 31 March 2008, the Group’s wholly-owned subsidiaries in the
Mainland China and Hong Kong had capital commitments, which were
contracted but not provided for, in respect of investments in certain of
their wholly-owned subsidiaries in the Mainland China amounting to
approximately HK$120,000 (2007: HK$46,207,000).

As at 31 March 2008, the Company had no significant commitments
(2007: Nil).

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to those disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements,
the Group also had the following related party transactions during the
year:

(a) The Group purchased raw materials amounting to HK$52,459,000
(2007: HK$41,375,000) from an associate at prices and on terms
similar to those offered by unrelated suppliers of the Group.

In addition, the Group purchased raw materials of HK$21,238,000
(2007: HK$4,809,000) from a related company, Zhenjian Mould
& Machinery (Shenzhen) Company Limited (“CC-SZ”). These
transactions were also continuing connected transactions of the
Group during the year.

CC-SZ is the associate of Dr. Chen Chiang, Ms. Lai Yuen Chiang
and Mr. Chi Kin Chiang, three directors of the Company. The terms
of the above transactions were conducted with prices and terms
mutually agreed by the Group and the related company.
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31 March 2008

35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

50U

(b) Compensation of key management personnel of the Group:

AEE Group

GEMTFT) (HK$'000) 2008 2007

HHEEREF Short term employee benefits 27,617 30,525

ZIRI1ERA Post-employment benefits 48 48

AR IR Share-based payments 206 251
27,871 30,824

BREFMENFAER D RNIH
R FEOHT o

36. eI ASE

REER - TRER /BT A2 REE

Further details of directors’ emoluments are included in note 9 to

the financial statements.

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments

s as at the balance sheet date are as follows:
SREE Financial assets
2008 2007
AfEE AHEE
SREE EXK SRMEE B3k
Available-for-  FEYRERER Available-for-  FEURERFR
FEE Group sale financial  Loans and #3it  salefinancial  Loans and FCE
(EEFr) (HK$'000) assets  receivables Total assets  receivables Total
A ERRZRE  Available-for-sale equity investments 124,057 - 124,057 124,057 - 124,057
JEUESZARIERFK  Amounts due from associates - 43 43 - 39 39
JERE 5 R Trade and bills receivables
FERN - 874324 874,324 - 675640 675640
ARE  BAFIE  Financial assets included
RE AR in deposits, prepayments
MEpEE and other receivables - 26,251 26,251 - 32,566 32,566
JERA &S Dividend receivable from an
RERSE, available-for-sale equity investment - 37,800 37,800 - - -
B RRTETE Cash and bank balances - 361,744 361,744 - 394721 394,721
124,057 1,300,162 1,424,219 124,057 1,102,966 1,227,023
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36. eI EDHEE) 36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (continued)

tRAas Financial liabilities
USSR R EZ
SRas
Financial liabilities at
amortized cost
rEH Group
(BB For) (HK$'000) 2008 2007
FEBE 2 R A BR IR Amounts due to associates 10,745 6,286
ERE S RERRR Trade and bills payables 410,373 300,497
AR MR AR Financial liabilities included
LEETaE in other payables and
NeEmasE accruals 37,813 38,891
IRITER - EIEIF Bank loans, unsecured 27,814 33,054
486,745 378,728
SHEE Financial assets
ERRERRE
Loans and receivables
b /N Company
(EB®For) (HK$'000) 2008 2007
JE LSBT 8 2~ J]BR TR Amounts due from subsidiaries 1,011,533 919,747
RAGIE - FENFIE Financial assets included
T E A U R 5K in deposits, payments and
e RVEE other receivables 915 1,087
He RIRTTHET Cash and bank balances 4,490 16,568
1,016,938 937,402
cREE Financial liabilities
DB EZ
SHas
Financial liabilities at
amortized cost
b N Company
(GE®For) (HK$'000) 2008 2007
FERHIB R AR Amounts due to subsidiaries 367,254 373,277

A4 ANNUAL REPORT 2008
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37.cWEAREEEERBE 37.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

AEBETIZSHTABRRE NRTHE
7 SRITER - BEBESEFEERX
AN BN E 5 REBRR

HASESR TAMELNTEZRR S
SRR - EERERMREE SRR o
AEEWLHEEANFERLR - BRE%
Fo m T AR KR KR F R R
RENTX - ERESEENERZT
[ - LARER BB FNE UMb AT T3E E #
=D

FRE R

AEEMMEENH SR ESEREE
HEAREENTSRITERERH - AEE
BEERERENXER  ERAEARR
- & BRIERARERRBRRER -

S LB

ARBRINEBREREERS DR
RAEREMRE - ARNDBARRA
EEBRFRE -

AEBBINERZ BRER - ZFREBRIRR
AEBOREBDHERRERLS - A
XTRARBRRHER - EREBER
ENERR  MERE - S ELT
BEARINERE o

AEBARENHGBES  REHR
BEREMNINE R o ERNF IR
BREHZERAREIHE

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise cash and bank
balances, bank loans, trade and bills receivables, and trade and bills
payable.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are
foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group had
insignificant interest rate risk. The risks associated with these financial
instruments and the policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out
below. The management manages and monitors these exposures to
ensure appropriate measures are implemented in a timely and effective
manner.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates
relates primarily to the Group’s bank loans carrying floating interest
rates. The Group monitors its interest rate exposure closely and
considers to take measures to reduce significant interest rate exposure,
if any.

Foreign currency risk

The Group's foreign exchange risk arises from commercial transactions,
recognized assets and liabilities and net investments in operations in
Mainland China and Taiwan.

The Group has transactional currency risk exposures. Such risk
exposures arise from a substantial portion of the Group’s sales and
purchases transactions denominated in United States dollars (“US$”)
and Renminbi (“RMB”). Management closely monitors foreign
exchange exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign
currency exposure should the need arise.

The Group reduces the foreign currency risk exposure on its investments
in Taiwan with appropriate levels of borrowings in New Taiwan dollars.
Whereas the investments in Mainland China will benefit from the
appreciation of RMB.

]- 3 5 SEHESE AT PR W] CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED



Notes to Financial Statements

31 March 2008

B %5 2R R MY =E

“EEN\F=ZRA=+—H

37. 2 EMEEEERBE(E) 37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

(continued)

SRR ()

Foreign currency risk (continued)
T%ﬁljﬂ’j&ﬁ BB AR RSN 4E The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the balance sheet

HR(EMAHEMEBRRETZENER
TIHETRARKERNSEAEE
HNHBRE(DRBEREEEEREE
WA TEZS KRB RNES) -

date to a reasonably possible change in US$ and RMB exchange rates,
with all other variables held constant, of the Group’s profit before tax
(due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities) and
the Group’s equity (due to changes in the retained profits).

SNEER BRBE AT 32

®h,0RL) iR Rz
Increase/ Increase/ #hn, CRd)
(decrease) (decrease) Increase/
in foreign in profit (decrease)
CEBFT) (HK$'000) currency rate (%) before tax in equity
2008
T ARBEETHAAE If RMB strengthens against HK$ 5% 43,417 43,417
WA REE BT (A If RMB weakens against HK$ (5%) (43,417) (43,417)
M AREHETHE If RMB strengthens against US$ 5% 9,294 9,294
MAREEEHETTE(E If RMB weakens against US$ (5%) (9,294) (9,294)
2007
WA REESE T HHE If RMB strengthens against HK$ 5% (3,701) (3,701)
WA REE BT (A If RMB weakens against HK$ (5%) 3,701 3,701
M ARBEHETIE If RMB strengthens against US$ 5% 10,575 10,575
W AREEEHETTE(E If RMB weakens against US$ (5%) (10,575) (10,575)
FERBE Credit risk

FERBRZEFERRHE T TREE
EETEEEMSASERMRZTHG
1BRHYATRENE -

Credit risk arises from the possibility that the counter party of a
transaction is unwilling or unable to fulfill its obligation and the Group
thereby suffers a financial loss.

FEW S PR R (5 AR T B IR IR

The credit limits of trade receivables are determined and monitored by

BEEBTNEE I REEE
B AfEeEZSRRERNESERN
AIREIRER - AR AT EISIED
e R HDRERIE - Btk - AEERR
BERBRIFEK o

A4 ANNUAL REPORT 2008

management on an ongoing basis. In addition, at each balance sheet
date, the Group reviews the recoverable amount of each individual
trade debt to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for
unrecoverable amounts. Therefore, the Group’s exposure to impairment
is not significant.
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37.cmEREEAERBEE) 37.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

FERBR(E)

AEEREbEREE(BRAS MRS
FEMNEERRIERHTHED
11/ EEARBRAERZETLANR
EE ° AABEAZELRHE SR
EEMEERR - BREFBCHNITH
PaE33 -

HRAKREReRAR LB EENER
R WEFEREHRER - KHEE
RBIEER, /X5 HETER - REE
I NFHEEASFEERR -

BRAEBRKESRFMELNEE
R e — S EIRER - EENT KR
FRPEE23

RBETER

AEBERBRERABDESTETE - L
EREETRRMNEAR - 2 TAZES
TRMTAREREE(N: BRES R
FEEEFONIHA REALLHSR

=
B

(continued)

Credit risk (continued)

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, which comprise
cash and cash equivalents, arises from default of the counter party
with @ maximum exposure equal to the carrying amounts of these
instruments. The Company is also exposed to credit risk through the
granting of financial guarantees, further details of which are disclosed
in note 33 to the financial statements.

Since the Group trades only with recognized and creditworthy parties,
there is no requirement for collateral. Concentrations of credit risk
are managed by customer/counter party. There are no significant
concentrations of credit risk within the Group.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure to credit
risk arising from trade receivables are disclosed in note 23 to the
financial statements.

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using recurring
liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the maturity of both its
financial instruments and financial assets (e.g. trade and bills
receivables) and projected cash flows from operations.

1 3 7 SEHESE AT PR W] CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 March 2008

Liquidity risk (continued)

37.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

(continued)

ANEENSRBENGEH(EEETD The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at the balance
KRB RZE) I BIEIE M ¢ sheet date, based on the contracted undiscounted payments, was as
follows:
=EAR
Less than 3 months
AEH Group
CE#FT) (HK$°000) 2008 2007
B E S R EIRRR Trade and bills payables 410,373 300,497
s A AT BR R Financial liabilities included
[EEtEEN AR in other payables and accruals 37,813 38,891
RITE KR - A Bank loans, unsecured 27,814 33,054
476,000 372,442

EXrER

AEEEAEENTIZARRBELS
BB LM N RRFHERNE AL
o PUXREEEREAREIRSK

R -
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Capital management

maximize shareholder’s value.

138

The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and to
maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and
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Notes to Financial Stéteﬁ‘lerits

31 March 2008

37.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

(continued)
Capital management (continued)

The Group manages its capital structure and make adjustments to
it, in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or adjust
the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. No
changes were made in the objectives or processes during the years
ended 31 March 2008 and 31 March 2007.

In addition, the Group monitors capital using position of net current
assets, which is the total current assets minus the total current liabilities.
The Group’s policy is to maintain a positive balance of the net current
assets.

38. COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS

Certain comparative amounts have been included to conform with the
current year’s presentation.

39. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorized for issue by
the board of directors on 15 July 2008.
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Principal Subsidiaries

At at 31 March 2008
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TR EREERARGUARFENR
SEXEELTEATENENAEEE

The table below lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for the year

A4 ANNUAL REPORT 2008

EFEFEBHMBAR - EERW or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give
RE - FIHESRHB AR ZFEBBR details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result
T e in particulars of excessive length.
Al M =%y
TeE RAMEE ¥ UNSIEE Y]
Place of BWEX BREBDE
incorporation/ Nominal value of Percentage of
a8 registration issued share/  equity attributable FTEER
Name and operations paid-up capital to the Company Principal activities
B#ERE
Held indirectly
TN BRAE] =0 Bk 100 SHE T
Asian Plastic Machinery Taiwan Ordinary Sale of
Company, Limited ¥4 #50,000,0007T plastic injection
NT$50,000,000 moulding machines
B S BR A B KR %2,100,0007T 100 BUER SR ERTIREA
CRY) BRRAF W PRC/Mainland China US$2,100,000 Manufacture and sale
Chen Hsong CAD CAM of precision moulds
(Shenzhen) Company,
Limited
EEMBEERBERAR] e gl 100 RUIE L EERS
Chen Hsong Finance and Hong Kong Ordinary Provision of financial
Management Services Limited B2 and management
HK$2 services
BETEE ORI ICVE TN %44,000,0007T 100 REME
BRAE W PRC/Mainland China US$4,000,000 Property holding
Chen Hsong Industrial Park
(Shenzhen) Company,
Limited ¥
BEYMRFHERRAR b TRBBE2T 100 REVIREERS
Chen Hsong Logistics Services Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 Provision of
Company Limited EREEETRGNC - logistics services
75 #5,000,0007C
Non-voting deferred ©
HK$5,000,000
140
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Name
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Principal Subsidiaries

At at 31 March 2008

Eaiio AV
REHE
Place of

incorporation/
registration
and operations

28T
RAmEE
BUWER
Nominal value of
issued share/
paid-up capital

ERRFE
REEDL
Percentage of
equity attributable
to the Company

FEEK

Principal activities

BERE (&)

Held indirectly (continued)

RIEMRRAR AT

Chen Hsong Machinery

Company, Limited

BIEWERE ORI

BRAF W

Chen Hsong Machinery
Equipment (Shenzhen)
Company, Limited

R (ER) ARAR®
Chen Hsong Machinery

(Ningbo) Company,
Limited ¥

Rl (RY) ARAR ™
Chen Hsong Machinery
(Shenzhen) Company,

Limited @

EIERTFR D BR A A
Chen Hsong Machinery
Taiwan Company, Limited

BHRTEARRAR
Chen Hsong Precision Mould

Company Limited

b
Hong Kong

B B ARE
PRC/Mainland China

B B ARE
PRC/Mainland China

R B ARE
PRC/Mainland China

A=

Taiwan

o
Hong Kong

141

TRBBE2T
Ordinary HK$2
ERERRTRHO
75%50,000,0007T
Non-voting deferred ©
HK$50,000,000

#5#24,000,0007T
HK$24,000,000

%%8,010,0007T
US$8,010,000

##£32,000,0007T
HK$32,000,000

ER
Ordinary

#7158 %165,000,0007T

NT$165,000,000

TR
Ordinary
7&#4,410,0007T
HK$4,410,000

100

100

100

100

100

100

HE

Sale of

plastic injection
moulding machines

s RIHE M
Manufacture and sale
of tie bars

BUE R
Manufacture and sale
of plastic injection
moulding machines

SBENHE T
Manufacture and sale
of plastic injection
moulding machines

SUERHE T
Manufacture and sale
of plastic injection
moulding machines

HERBREA
Sale of
precision moulds

SEHESE AT PR W] CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED
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FTEWREBAF Principal Subsidiaries

j1]

EEa 1o AV

ReEHE

Place of

incorporation/

LA registration
Name and operations

At at 31 March 2008

28T
RAmEE,
BHRER
Nominal value of
issued share/
paid-up capital

VA YNSES Y]
BEED L
Percentage of
equity attributable
to the Company

FEEK

Principal activities

A4 ANNUAL REPORT 2008

BEEE (&)
Held indirectly (continued)

BB A RE
PRC/Mainland China

RIEEE (RY) BRAF W
Chen Hsong Sales & Marketing

(Shenzhen) Company,

Limited
BUHRBARAT BB
Chen Hsong Technology Limited Hong Kong
EREBERITRER A B KR

BEERBHARAR @
Chen Ning Plastics Machinery

PRC/Mainland China

Company, Limited @

B B A RE
PRC/Mainland China

Il R B R
HWAERLE

Foshan Shunde Chen De
Plastics Machinery
Company Limited ¥

B B A RE
PRC/Mainland China

BILTIREEEEE =2k
HWAERLE

Foshan Shunde Chen De No. 3
Plastics Machinery
Company, Limited !

B B A RE
PRC/Mainland China

IR B R
BREAR O

Foshan Shunde Chen De
Precision Machinery
Company, Limited !
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##10,000,0007T
HK$10,000,000

ik
Ordinary
A2
HK$2

AR#5,000,0007T
RMB5,000,000

5% $5,200,0007T
US$5,200,000

3%$2,100,0007T
US$2,100,000

3%$3,266,303.537C
US$3,266,303.53

100

100

100

100

100

100

SHE B

Sale of

plastic injection
moulding machines

SHE T

Sale of

plastic injection
moulding machines

BUE R HEITEH
Manufacture and sale
of plastic injection
moulding machines

SBENHE T
Manufacture and sale
of plastic injection
moulding machines

SBENHE T
Manufacture and sale
of plastic injection
moulding machines

SBENHE T
Manufacture and sale
of plastic injection
moulding machines
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Name

| ieepe

7 A

Principal Subsidiaries

At at 31 March 2008

Eaiio AV
REHE
Place of

incorporation/
registration
and operations

28T
RAmEE
BUWER
Nominal value of
issued share/
paid-up capital

ERRFE
REEDL
Percentage of
equity attributable
to the Company

50

FEEK

Principal activities

BERE (&)

Held indirectly (continued)

hILmIBE R B RE

BRAR @
Intra-ltaly Hydraulics
(Foshan Shunde)

Company, Limited ¥

IR BE B
BRAR @

Shandong Chen Hua
Plastics Machinery

Company, Limited @

RYBIEBERE

BRRF O

Shenzhen Chen Hsong Precision
Equipment Limited @

Hret

(1) HSERRRIINEBELE -

R B ARE
PRC/Mainland China

R B ARE
PRC/Mainland China

R B ARE
PRC/Mainland China

(2) hERRARPINGERLERE -

(3) EIRFRBEIERAD A R b2 YR

B BREARRAE L

KB Z R

RN BRFWEBE E AR 2 B4R -

5£3,000,0007T
US$3,000,000

%4 3,750,0007T
US$3,750,000

5%£12,000,0007T
US$12,000,000

Notes:

100

60

100

HERHERESE
Manufacture and sale
of hydraulic motors

SBENHE T
Manufacture and sale
of plastic injection
moulding machines

FUERIHESHT
Manufacture and sale
of casting parts

(1) These companies are wholly-foreign-owned enterprises.

(2) These companies are sino-foreign equity joint ventures.

(3) The non-voting deferred shares carry limited rights to dividends, no rights

to vote at general meetings and limited rights to receive any surplus in a

return of capital in a winding-up.
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Five-Year Financial Summary

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and minority interests

of the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the published

BERIEREE - audited financial statements, is set out below.
B RESULTS
HE=—HA=1—HIFFE Year ended 31 March
CEETT) (HK$'000) 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
Wz Revenue 2,316,136 2,155,014 1,955,334 1,867,483 1,634,334
4 as | Profit from
operating activities 342,263 337,352 306,418 291,441 287,888
RhE R AR Finance costs (4,419) (2,387) (7,139) (4,748) (4,404)
FE(EE = R A Share of profits less
s KRS 1B losses of associates 1,130 2,159 (185) (1,821) 7,343
PR AT Profit before tax 338,974 337,124 299,094 284,872 290,827
1A Tax (18,129) (24,833) (26,826) (22,408) (37,977)
RE G Profit for the year 320,845 312,291 272,268 262,464 252,850
EER Attributable to:
PAYNGIL £y Equity holders
HFEA of the Company 317,829 312,276 272,450 259,886 212,857
DEE R ERS Minority interests 3,016 15 (182) 2,578 39,993
320,845 312,291 272,268 262,464 252,850
BE - BBERLVEBRERES ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND MINORITY INTERESTS
R=A=+—H As at 31 March
CEETFT) (HK$'000) 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
BERE Total assets 3,118,939 2,661,539 2,477,621 2,298,535 2,112,137
BEHRE Total liabilities (726,035) (576,194) (630,881) (599,496) (595,519)
DHIR R Minority interests (12,041) (7,967) (7,483) (26,619) (24,490)
2,380,863 2,077,378 1,839,257 1,672,420 1,492,128
144
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